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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Edel Finance Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of Edel Finance Company Limited
(*the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid Standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
("the Act"} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2021, its loss
including other comprehensive loss its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SA), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section
of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
tnstitute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"} together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the Standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fuifilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone financial statements.

Emphasis of matter

We draw aitention to Note 59 1o the Standalone financial statements, which describes the economic and
social disruption as a result of COVID-19 pandemic of the Company's business and financial metrics
including impairment of carrying value of investments in group companies which is dependent onuncertain
future developments. Our opinion is not modified In respect of this matter.,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance In our
audit of the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
aur description of haw our audit addressed the matter is provided in that cantext.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements’ section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying Standalone financial statements.

€.R Bathbol & Co. LLP, 3 Limited Labiliiy Partnorshipswith LLP Identity No. AAB-4294
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Key audit matters

| How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(&) Impairment of investments in subsidiary and other group companies (as described in Note 73,
13A, 13B & 13C of the Standalone financial statements)

The Company is a Core Investment Company
{CIC) registered with the Reserve Bank of India
(RBI} and has investments in subsidiary
amounting to Rs. 12,354.98 million in form of
equity shares of Rs. 2,854.97 million,
compulsority convertible preference shares of
Rs. h00.00 million and compulsorily convertible
debentures of Rs. 9,000.01 million. The Company
has also invested in form of equity shares of Rs.
1,590.74 million in other group companies.
These investments are valued at cost and are
required to be assessed for impairment in
accordance with Ind AS 36, when any indicators
of impairment are observed.

In carrying out such impairment assessment, a
significant judgement of the management is
involved in estimating the investee company’s
*value in use”, with in accordance with Ind AS 36.
Estimation of the value in use requires the
management 1o apply appropriate assumptions
with respect to the growth rates for future cash
flow projections of the investee company and
discount rates for determining present value of
such cash flows.

We have identified impairment testing of
investments in subsidiary and other group
companies as a key audit matter due to the high
degree of management's judgement involved in
estimation of the recoverable amount of such
investments, the inherent uncertainty relating to
the assumptlons supporting such estimates and
the significance of the investments to the overall
Standalone financial statements.

Our audit procedures included censidering the
appropriateness of the processes laid down by the
management for assessment of impairment in the
value of investments in subsidiary and other group
companies combined with procedures performed
as follows:

o We considered managementi’s assessment of
impairment from the managemeni experts
wherever considered necessary and assessed
whether any impairment indicators existed for
investment in individual subsidiary and other
group companies.

e We traced the net-worth of the individual
subsidiary and other group companies to their
audited financial statements.

¢ We assessed information used to determine
the key assumptions, including growth rates
and discount rates.

¢ We assessed the disclosures relating fo
investments in subsidiary and other group
companies included in the Standalone financial
statements in  accordance with  the
requirements of Ind AS.

{b) Information technology {IT) systems and controls

The reliability and security of IT systems play a
key role in the business operations and financiaj
accounting and reporting process of the
Company. Since large volume of transactions are
pracessed daily, the IT controls are required to
ensure that applications process data as
expected and that changes are made in an
appropriate manner. Any gaps in the {T control
environment could result in a material
misstatement of the financial accounting and
reporting records.

Therefore, due to the pervasive nature and
complexity of the IT environment, the
assessment of the general IT controls and the
application controls specific to the accounting
and preparation of the financial information is

We performed the following procedures for testing
IT general cantrols and for assessing the reliability
of electronic data processing, assisted by
specialized IT auditors:

e The aspects covered in the IT General Control
audit were (i) User Access Management (if)
Program Change Management (jii} Other
related ITGCs - to understand the design and
test the operating effectiveness of such
controls;

e Assessed the changes that were made to the
key systems during the audit peried and
assessing changes that have impact on
financial reporting;
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Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

e Tested the periodic review of access rights. We
inspected requests of changes to systems for
appropriate approval and authorization.

= Performed tests of controls (including other
compensatory controls wherever applicable) on
the [T application controls and IT dependent
manual controls in the system.

« Tested the design and operating effectiveness
of compensating controls, where deficiencies
were identfified and, where necessary,
extended the scope of our substantive audit
procedures.

{c) Merger of Edelweiss Finvest Limited with the Company (as described in Note 49 of the Standalone

financial statements)
The Company ( “EFCL" or “‘transferee”) | « Performed inquiries with the managements of
completed the merger of Edelweiss Finvest EFCL to understand the business rationale for
Limited ( “EFL” or "transferor”) on February 22, such absorption and assessed whether
2027, pursuant to a scheme of merger by application of Scheme of NCLT is appropriate.

absorption under Sections 230 to 232 of the ) .
Companies Act, 2013 presented to the National | * Reviewed the NCLT order, valuation report for

Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT") (the "Scheme") shares and other relevant documents provided
the final order of which was received on March to us by the management to corroborate our
31, 2021, understanding of the merger with the inquiries
' referred above and assessed whether all
NCLT stipulated that upon implementation of the significant terms and conditions stipulated
Scheme, EFCL shall account for the thgerem haye begn considered for accounting
amalgamation with EFL in the books of accounts using ‘poaling of Interest’ method.
in accordance with "Pooling of Interest Method” | « Reviewed the forms filed with the Registrar of
of accounting as laid down in Appendix C of Ind Companies and approvals sought from RBI by
AS- 103 (Business Combinations of entities the Company to gjve the effect of the merger
under common control) notified under Section order issued by the NCLT.

133 of the Companies Act, 2013, under the .
Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, | ® Evaluated the competence, capability and
2015, as amended from time to time. objectivity of the professional valuer engaged
by the Company in accordance with Standard
Considering the materiality of the absorbed on Auditing (SA) 500.

business to the overall assets of the merged
entities significant audit aitention has been
required to assess the appropriateness of the
accounting treatment applied for the above
transaction in the Standalone financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, we | ® Assessed whether the disclosures made in the
have considered this area as a key audif matter. Standalone financial statements of the Merged
entity i.e. EFCL with respect to such absorption
are in accordance with the requirements of Ind
AS.

= Reviewed calculations performed by the
management to determine capital reserve
arising on merger, as stipulated under Ind AS
103, including arithmetical accuracy thereof.

Other Information

The Company’'s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include the Standalone financial
staternents and our auditor’s report thereon, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditors report,
and the Annual report, which is expected to be made available to us after that date.
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Our opinion on the Standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conciusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
Standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

When we read the Annual report, if we conclude that there is a malerial misstatement therein, we are
required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financlal
Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect fo the preparation of these Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive loss, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company In accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Thaose Charged with Governance are also responsibie for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standaione financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that Includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SA will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arlse from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

- basis-of these Standalone financtal statements, - -

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtaln audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
infernal control.
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¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under secticn 143{3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system
in place and the operating effectiveness of such conirols.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the Standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to madify our opinion. Our conclusions are hased on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease fo continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies In internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on cur independence, and where applicable, refated
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2021 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (1) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
*Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a} We have sought and obtained all tho information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

(b) Inour opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;
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{d)

{e)

©

@

(h)

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2027 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company with reference to these Standalone financial statements and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in *Annexure 2" to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 20271 has been

paid/provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending [itigations on its financial position in its
Standalone financiai statements - Refer Note 41 to the Standalone financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses:

iii. Therewere no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAIl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

Lo e

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102
UDIN: 21102102AAAAKXETT5

Mumbai

Date: June 11, 2021
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading "Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Edel Finance Company Limited

(iy f{a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) All fixed assets have not been physically verified by the management during the year but there is
a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size

of the Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

{c) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the title deeds of
immovable properties included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name of the
Company.

(ii) The Company's business does not involve inventories and, accordingly, the requirements under
clause 3(ii) of the Crder are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(iiiy (a) The Company has granted loans to five parties covered in the register maintained under section
189 of the Act. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

{b) The Company has granted loans to five parties covered in the register maintained under section
189 of the Act. The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been
stipulated for the loans granted and the repayment/receipts are regular.

{c) There are no amounts of loans granted to companies, firms or other parties listed in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Act which are overdue for more than ninety days.

{iv) In our opinion and according 1o the information and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities given in respect of which provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Act are applicable and hence not commented upon.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has not specified the
mainienance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act, for the services of the Company.

(vil) (a) Undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and
other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities. As
informed, the provisions relating to employee’s state insurance, service tax, wealth tax, sales tax,
value added tax, excise duty and customs duty are currently not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, ne undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and ather statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable. As informed, the provisions relating to employee’s state insurance, service tax, wealih
tax, sales tax, value added tax, excise duty and customs duty are currently not applicable to the
Company.

{c} According to the records of the Company, the dues outstanding of income-tax, service tax and
cess on account of any dispute, are given below. As informed, the provisions relating to
employee's state insurance, service tax, wealth tax, sales tax, value added tax, excise duty and
ustoms duty are currently not applicable to the Company.
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Name of the | Nature of | Amount Amount Period to | Forum where
Statute dues under paid (Rs. in | which its | dispute is pending
dispute millions) * | relates
{Rs. in
miltions)?
Income Tax Act, | Income 123.97 37.68 | AY 2014-15 | The Commissioner
1961 Tax of Income Tax
{Appeals}
Income Tax Act, | Income 12.57 - | AY 2015-16 | The Commissioner
1961 Tax of Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax Act, | Income 127.57 - | AY 2017-18 | The Commissioner
1961 Tax of Income Tax
{Appeals)
Income Tax Act, | Income 596.83 - | AY 2018-19 | The Commissioner
1961 Tax of Income Tax
(Appeals)
" Paid under protest

# includes interest

{(viii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution or bank
or dues to debenture holders.

(ix) in our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer/ further public offer/ debt
instruments and term loans, hence reporting under clause (ix} is not applicable to the company
and hence not commented upon,

x) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of
the Standalone financial statements and according to the informatien and explanations given by
the management, we report that no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company
by the officers and employees of the Company has been neticed or reparted during the year.

{xi) According to the Information and explanations given by the management, the managerial
remuneration has been paid/provided in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197, read with Schedule V to the Act.

(xif) In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii} of
the Order are not applicable to the Company and hence not commented upon.

(xiiiy  According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the Standalone financial statements, as required by
the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on an cverall examination of
balance sheet, the Company has not made any preferential aliotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and hence reporting
requirement under clause 3{xiv) are not applicable to the company and, hence not commented
upon.

(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not
entered Into any non-cash transactions with directors or persens connected with the directors as
referred to In section 192 of the Act.
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(xvi)  According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company has
registered as required, under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 3071003E/E300005

l\mw/c/\w/(/“;ﬁ//_]

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102
UDIN: 21102102AAAAKXBT775
Mumbat

Date: June 11, 2021
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Annexure 2 referred to in paragraph 2 {f) under the heading "Report on other legal and regulatory
requiremenis” of our report of even date

Report on the Internal Financial Controis under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Edel Finance Company Limited
{*the Company") as of March 31,2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financlal Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementatiocn and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial conirols over flinancial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financiat Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing
as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controis and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the Standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial controi over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
asstrance regarding the relinbility of financial reporting and the proparation of Standalone financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detall, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Standalone financial statements in
accordance with generally accepied accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and {3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent [imitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper managernent override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting o future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become Inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in ail materfal respecls, an adequale internal flnanclal controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For S. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICALl Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

['\fc"u"y\” Wg/

per Shrawan Jalan

Partner

Membership Number: 102102
UBDIN: 21102102AAAAKXBT 75
Mumbai

Date: June 11, 2021




Edel Finance Company Limitcd
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

{Currency: Indian rupees in million}

As at Asat
Note _ March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
ASSETS
Financial assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 8 1,200,358 1,416.56
(b) Derivative financial instruments 9 - 1,563.67
(c} Securities held for trading 10 - 5,070.58
{d) Receivables
(i) Trade receivables 11 52.95 2,60
(i) Other receivables 11 - 2,78
(&) Loans 12 8,445.73 802817
(f) Iavestments 13 20,040.21 10,327.45
{g) Other financial assets 14 43.02 535.88
29,787.49 26,947.6%
Non-financial assets
{a) Current {ax assets (net) 15 330,50 158.30
(b) Deferred tax assets (net) i6 290,78 26119
{c) Property, Plant and Equipment 17 118 4.09
(d) Other Intangible assets i7 1.74 4.05
(e} Other non- financizal assets i8 4.78 150.11
630.98 577.74
TOTAL ASSETS 30,418.47 27,525.43
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Liabilities
Financial liabilities
(a) Derivative financial instruments 9 - 236.46
(b} Trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and smatl enterprises - -
(if) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and 19
small enterprises 40.89 22851
(c} Debt securities 20 10,665.81 13,160.17
(d) Boerrowings (other than debt securities) 21 7,136.05 1,849.11
(e} Subordinated liabilities 22 161.12 161.09
(f) Other financial liabilities 23 16.22 0.48
18,0620.09 15,635.82
Non-financial Habilities
(a) Current tax liabilities (net) 24 18.16 163.23
(b) Provisions 25 1.03 7.69
(c} Other ron-financial liabilities 26 19.34 66.99
38.53 237.9
Equity
{a&) Equity share capital 27 5,566.75 5,332,37
(b} Instruments entirely equity in nature 28 1,650.60 -
{c) Other equity 29 5,143.10 6,319.33
12,359,835 11,651.70
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 30,418.47 27,525.43
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements I to 61

As per our report of even date attached

For §. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

L2

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

5. Ranganathan

Director
DIN : 00125493

Ananthakris‘hEan s

Company Secretary

Atal Am‘;f%

Director
DIN : 00195875

o

Sunil Nagrani
Chief Financial Officer

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membesship Ne: 102102

Mumbai June 11, 2021 Mumbai June £1, 2028




Edel Firance Company Limited
Statement of Profit and Less for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Cuarrency: Indian rupees in million)

Revenue from operations
{nterest income

Dividend income

Fee income

Net gain on fair value changes

Other income
Total Revenue

Expenses
Finance costs

Impairment on financial instruments
Employee benefits expense
Pepreciation, amortisation and impairment

Other expenses
Total expenses
Loss before tax
'f‘ax expenses

(1) Current tax
a) Current Tax

b) Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years

(2) Deferred tax expense / (credit) (net)

Total Tax

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income / {loss)

(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gain / (Joss) on defined benefit plans (OCI)
Income tax - QCI - that will net be reclassified

Total

Total comprehensive loss

Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs. 100 each):

(1) Basic (INR)
(2) Diluted (INR)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For 8. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

3

Llpav(-e/"‘

per Shrawan Jalan
Partner
Membership No: 102102

Mumbai June §1, 2021

Note For the year ended For the year caded
March 31, 2021 March 31,2020

30 1,325.62 1,946.93
3t - 0.71
32 22.3] 4127
33 528.68 109517
34 1.23 4.06
1,877.84 3,088.14

35 1,986.18 1,947.94
36 793.28 520.44
37 34.07 112.22
17 322 3.09
33 545.14 521.57
3,361.89 3,105.26
(1,484.05) {17.12)

3% - 276.76
39 {212.90) (60.39)
(212.90) 216.37
39 (26.59) (142.70)
(242.49) 73.67
{1,241.56) (99.79)
(041 229
- (057
(0.41} 172
(1,241.97} {89.07)
40 (22.73) (1.70)
40 (22.73) (1.70%
1to 61

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

S. Raaganathan

Director

DIN: 00125493

P pd
Ananthakrishaan S
Company Secrefary

Mumbai June 11, 2021

@Q/
Atul Ambaval

Director
DIN : 00195875

r'd

Sunil Nagrani
Chief Financial Officer




Edel Finance Company Limited
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Currency: Indian rupees in million)

A Cash flow from operating activities

Loss before tax

Adjustments to reconcile loss before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortisation

Impairment on financial instruments (net)

Fair value of financial instruments (net)

Provision for gratuity and compensated absences
Interest on income tax refund

Profit on sale of of fixed assets {net}

‘Working capital changes (net)

Increase / (Decrease) for working capital changes (net)
Trade and other receivables

Securities held for trading

Other financial assets

Loans

Investments

Other non financial assets

Trade payables

Non financial liabilities

Other financial liability

Income taxes paid

Net cash {used in) / generated from operating activities -A

B Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Net cash generated from/ {(used in) investing activities - B

C Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of Share capital (including Securities Premium)
Decrease in debt securities (refer note 1 below)
Increase in borrowings other than debt securities (refer note 1 below)

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities - C

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B-+C)

Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
{1,484.05) (17.12)
322 3.09
793.28 520.44
26.88 1,027.09
(7.07) (4.93)
- (0.05)
{0.01)
(667.75) 1,528.52
{52.53) (6.87)
5,070.58 (4,594.03)
2,058.23 (944.86)
(1,046.62) 14,878.77
(9,792.17) (4,658.91)
26.47 {45.85)
(175.22) {96.97)
(47.65) 19.48
93.43 295.74
(4,540.23) 6,375.02
{104.34) {139.01)
(4,644.57) 6,236.01
(0.11) (1.40)
0.12 0.03
0.01 (1.37)
1,950.12 -
(2,318.64) (9,765.03)
5,297.10 275.65
4,428.58 (9,489.38)
(215.98) (3,254.74)
1,416.56 4,671.30
1.200.58 1416.56




Edel Finance Company Limited
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Currency: Indian rupees in million})

Cash Flow Statement (confinued)

Notes:
1 Cash receipts and payments for transaction with group companies in which the turnover is quick, the amounts are large, and the
maturities are short are presented on net basis in accordance with Ind AS-7 Statement of Cash Flows
2 Above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 preseribed under the Companies Act

(Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 under the companies Act ,2013.
3 Refer note 43 for disclosure relating to changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

As per our report of even date attached

For 8. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

CAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300003

- b . s ,.L—a‘

hepos—E~ " ™ %‘__

per Shrawan Jalan ' S. Ranganathan Atul Ambav.

Partner Director Director

Membership No: 102102 DIN : 00125493 DIN : 60195875
Ananthakrishnan S Sunil Nagrani
Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer

Mumbai June 11, 2021 Mumbai June 11, 2021




Ede] Finance Company Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2021
{Currency: Imdian rupees in matfion)

A. Equity Share Capital

For the year ended March 31, 2021

For the year coded March 38, 2020

Qutstanding gs on | fssved during the | Outstanding =s on | Quistanding ason | Issved during | Oukstanding s an
April £, 2020 year March 34, 2021 April 1, 2089 the year March 31, 2020
lssued. subscribed and paid up 533237 23438 556675 1 600.00 433237 335237
{Equity shares of Rs. 100 cach, fuily paid-up)
B. Gther Equity
N . . Deemed Capital | Deemed Capilzl N .
Capital | Capilad rtde.mpuun Scewrities Premium] Statutory Reserve | Retsined Earnings | Contribution- |  Contribution - Tmpsirment. | Total '!:hnhu“b!c
Reserves Teserve N Reserve to equity holders
Fquity Preference Shares
Balance as at April 1, 2019 - 84.34 4,59208 1,151.61 4,802 64 225 - - 1063292
{055 for the year - - - - (9079 - - - (5179)
Other comprehensive income - - - - 172 - - - 172
- 84.34 4,592.08 1,151.61 4,713.57 215 - - 10,543.85
Ruserve created on account of merger {3,095 11y - - - - “ - - (3.59%.11)
Premiunm reeeived an issue of debentures - - {172.44) - - - - - (172.44),
Transfer to statutory reserve - - - 86,58 (36.98) - - - .00
Deemed distribution during the year u - - - - - {32.497) - (52.97)
Balance as at March 31, 2020 (3,999.11} 84,34 4,419.64 1,138.59 4,626.59 .z {52.97) - $,319.33
Loss for the year - - - - 36} - - - (1.241.56}
Other comprechensive logy - - - - {0.41} - - - {t41)
[3,999.11) 94ﬂ.=34 4,412&6‘1 IEEHS_;SE 3,384,612 2,15 {52,97) - 5,077,356
Premium reesived on issus of equity shares - - 65.74 - - - - - 65.74
Transfer o impairment rescrve - .- - - {3227 - 3227 0.00
Eaalme as at March 31, 2021 (3,999,11) 84,34 4,485.38 1,238.59 3,352.35 238 (52.97) 32.27 5,143,10
As per our report of even dats attached.
Fhe accompanying notes 1 to 61 are an integral part of the financial statements
Far 5. R. Batliboi & Co. LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Direstors
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 30 i MS% %
l’\r - V\/@—l
per Shrawan Jalan S, Ranganathan Atul Antbavat
Pariner Dirsctor Dircetor
Membership No: 102102 DIN - 0125495 DIN 00195875
-,
Ammﬂcﬁshn% 8 Sunil Nagrani
Company Secretary Chzef Financiat Officer

Mumbai Junc 11, 2021

Muambai e 11, 2023




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

1. Corporate information:

Edel Finance Company Limited (‘the Company’) a public limited company domiciled and incorporated under the
provisions applicable in India under the Companies Act, 1956. The Company was incorporated on October 16, 1989
and is wholly owned subsidiary of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited.

The Company was primarily engaged in the business of lending and investment and is registered with the Reserve
Bank of India (*RBI’) as a Systematically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC-
ND-SI). Company got converted to Core Investment Company as NBFC-CIC-ND-SI on 09 October, 2018,

2. Basis of preparation:

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time).

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments
such as, derivative financial instruments, and other financial instruments held for frading, which have been measured
at fair value. The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest
million, except when otherwise indicated.

3. Presentation of financial statements:

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity in compliance with the Division I of the Schedule III
to the Companies Act, 2013. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months afier the reporting date
(current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non—current) is presented in *Note 44-Maturity Analysis
of assets and liabilities™.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and
reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts

without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following
circumstances:

o The normal course of business
e The event of default
o The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and or its counterparties

Derivative assets and liabilities with master netting arrangements [e.g. ISDAs (International Swaps and Derivatives

Association)] are only presented net when they satisfy the eligibility of netting for all of the above criteria and not
just in the event of default.

4. Significant accounting policies

4.1 Recognition of inferest income and dividend income
4,1.1 Effective interest rate (EIR):

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method
for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and debt instrument measured at
FVOCI. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate a shorter period to the gross
carrying amount of financial instrument.

The EIR is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate
of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of
the financial asset. Hence, it recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

4.1.2

4.1.3

4.1.4

4.1.5

at various stages, and other characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments
penalty interest and charges.

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other
than credit risk, the adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying
amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income.

Interest income:
The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of
financial assets other than credit-impaired assets.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3°, the
Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the amortised cost (net of expected
credit less) of the financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired,
the Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

Penal interest income on delayed EMI or pre EMI is recognised on receipt basis.

Dividend income:
The Company recognised dividend income when the Company’s right to receive the payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Company and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Fee and Commission Income:
Fee and commission income include fees other than those that are an integral part of EIR. The
Company recognises the fee and commission income in accordance with the terms of the
relevant contracts / agreement and when it is probable that the Company will coliect the
consideration,

Other Income

Other Income represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is
recognised when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract.
Other ancillary charges are recognized upon realisation.

4.2 Financial instruments:

4.2.1

4,2.2

4.2.3

Date of recognition:

Financial assets and liabilities with exception of loans and borrowings are initially recognised
on the trade date, i.e, the date the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the
market place, Loans are recognised when funds are transferred to the customers’ account. The
Company recognises borrowings when funds are available for utilisation to the Company.

Initial measurement of financial instruments;

Financial assets and financial labilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly atiributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial Habilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Day 1 profit and loss:

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at origination
and the fair value is based on a valuation fechnique using only inputs observable in market
transactions, the Company recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value
in net gain on fair value changes. In those cases where fair value is based on models for which
some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the transaction price and the fair




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

4.24

value is deferred and is only recognised in profit or loss when the inputs become observable, or
when the instrument is derecognised.

Classification & measurement categories of financizal assets and liabilities:

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the
assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose
abjective is to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in carrying value of
financial assets is recognised in profit and loss account.

Sale that occur for below reason are considered as consistent with business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect confractual cash flows

¢ [fthose sales are infrequent (even if significant in value) or insignificant in value both
individually and in aggregate {even if frequent),

¢ If such sales are made close to maturity of financial asset and proceeds from sale
approximate the collection of the remaining contractual cash flow

¢ Seclling a financial asset because of significant increase in credit risk.
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCK)

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective
is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in fair
value of financial assets is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are measured at FVTPL.

The Company measures all financial assets classified as FVTPL at fair value at each reporting
ate. The changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Profit and loss account.

4.3 Financial assets and liabilities;

4.3.1

Amortized cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument
and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estirnated future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit Tosses, through
the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross
carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at
initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amartisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount,
adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

43.2

4.3.3

4.3.4

4.3.5

4.3.6

4.3.7

Financial assets held for trading:

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased
primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of
financial instrumnents that are managed together, for which there is evidence of a recent pattern
of short-term profit taking. Held-for-trading assets are recorded and measured in the balance
sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in net gain on fair value changes.

Investment in equity instruments:

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments (other than subsidiaries, associates,
and other group companies) at fair value through profit or loss, unless the management has
elected to classify irrevocably some of its strategic equity investments to be measured at
FVTOCI, when such instruments meet the definition of Equity under Ind AS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. Such classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. Investments in subsidiaries and associates are carried at cost as
permiited under Tnd AS 27 (Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements). The investment
in other group companies are carried at cost. (subsidiaries, associates, and other group
companies).

Financizal Habilities:

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments, financial
guarantees, and derivative financial liabilities.

Derivative financial instruments:

The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to
interest rate, market risks.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered
into and are subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt securities and other borrowed funds:

The Company measures debt issued and other borrowed funds at Amortised cost at each
reporting date. Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any discount or premium on
issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

The Company issues certain non-convertible debentures, the return of which is linked to
performance of specified indices over the period of the debenture. Such debentures have a
component of an embedded derivative which is fair valued at a reporting date. The resultant ‘net
unrealised loss or gain® on the fair valuation of these embedded derivatives is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss. The debt component of such debentures is measured at amortised
cost using yield to maturity basis.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading
and have been either designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value under Ind AS 109. Management only designates an
instrument at FVTPL upon initial recognition when one of the following criteria are met. Such
designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

e The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on
them on a different basis; Or
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Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

4.3.8

e The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy; Or

e The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not
significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or it
is clear with little or no analysis when a similar instrument is first considered that
separation of the embedded derivative(s) is prohibited.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value.
Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and loss with the exception of movements in fair
value of liabilities designated at FVTPL due to changes in the Company’s own credit risk. Such
changes in fair value are recorded in the Own credit reserve through OCI and do not get recycled
to the profit or loss. Interest earned or incurred on instruments designated at FVTPL is accrued
in interest income or finance cost, respectively, using the EIR, taking into account any discount/
premium and qualifying transaction costs being an integral part of instrument. Interest earned
on assets mandatorily required to be measured at FVTPL is recorded using contractual interest
rate,

Financial Babilities and equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

4.4 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from
the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line.
The Company didn’t reclassify any of its financial assets or liabilities in current period and previous

period.

4.5 Derecognition of financial Instruments:

4.5.1

Derecognition of financial asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar
financial assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset
have expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both fransferred the
financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.

The Comparny has transferred the financial asset if, and only if] either

"o The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assetor

e [tretains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumed
a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows in full without material delay to third party
under pass through arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual
rights to receive the cash flows of a {inancial asset (the 'original asset'), but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more entities (the 'eventual
recipients'), when all of the following conditions are met:

o The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it
has collected equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-ter
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advances with the right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at
market rates,

e The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the
eventual recipients.

The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients
without material delay. In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash
flows, except for investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during
the period between the collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual
recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
e The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

¢ The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially alf the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control o be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the
practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to
exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the
transfer.

The Company also derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have
been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new financial asset, with
the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment
loss has not already been recorded. The newly recognised financial assets are classified

as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes, unless the new financial asset is deemed to be
POCIL

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the
modification does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows
discounted at the original EIR, the Company records a modification gain or loss, to the
extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded.

4.5.2 Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derccognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original
financial lability and the consideration paid, including modified contractual cash flow
recognised as new financial liability, is recognised statement of profit and loss.

4.6 Impairment of financial assets:

The Company records provisions based on expected credit loss model (“ECL”) on all ioans, other debt
financial assets measured at amortised cost together with undrawn loan commitment and financial
guarantee contracts, in this section all referred to as “Financial instrument”. Equity instruments are not
subject to impairment.

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. A credit loss is the difference between the cash
flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects
to receive discounted at the original effective interest rate. Because ECL consider the amount and timing
of payments, a credit loss arises even if the entity expects to be paid in full but later than when
contractually due.
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Simplified approach

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date,
right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss
allowance on portfolio of its receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default
rates over the expected life of the receivables. However, if receivables contain a significant financing
component, the Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure the loss allowance by applying
general approach to measure ECL.

General approach

For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on
the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses
(12m ECL). The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood orrisk of a default occurring since initial recognition instead of an evidence of
a financiat asset being credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default (PD), loss given
default (1.GD) (ie. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. As for the exposure at default (EAD), for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets” gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for loan commitments and financial guarantee
confracts, the exposure inciudes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any
additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default date determined based on historical
trend, the Company’s understanding of the specific future financing needs of the debtors, and other
relevant forward-looking information.

Company categories its financial assets as follows:

Stage 1 assets:

Stage 1 assets includes financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these assets, 12-month ECL
(resulting from default events possible within 12 menths from reporting date) are recognised,

Stage 2 assets:

Stage 2 Assets includes financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition For these assets lifetime ECL (resulting from default events possible within 12 months from
reporting date) are recognised.

Stage 3 assets:
Stage 3 for Assets considered credit-impaired the Company recognises the lifetime ECL for these loans.
The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

The ongoing assessment of whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred for working capital
facilities is similar to other lending products. The interest rate used to discount the ECLs for working
capital facilities is based on the average effective interest rate that is expected to be charged over the
expected period of exposure to the facilities.

Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
correspending adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.
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The expected credit losses on the loan commitment have been recognised together with the foss allowance
for the financial asset.

The Company’s product offering includes a working capital facilities with a right to Company to cancel
and/or reduce the facilities with one day’s notice. The Company does not limit its exposure to credit losses
to the contractual notice period, but, instead calculates ECL over a period that reflects the Company’s
expectations of the customer behaviour, its likelihood of default and the Company’s future risk mitigation
procedures, which could include reducing or cancelling the facilities.

Collateral valuation:

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company secks to use collateral, where possible. The
collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of credit /guarantees, real estate,
receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit enhancements such as netting agreements.
Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the Company’s balance sheet, However, the fair value
of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. It is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-
assessed on a quarterly basis. However, some collateral, for example, securities relating to margin
requirements, is valued daily.

To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as collateral.
Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market value are valued using models.
Non-financial collateral, such as real estate, is valued based on data provided by third parties such as
mortgage brokers, or based on housing price indices.

‘Write-ofis:

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

Determination of fair value:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each reporting date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either;

e In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or Hability, assuming that market participanis act in their economic best
interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation
techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair vaiue, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on
a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level I financial instruments:

Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company
considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and
liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes
available on the balance sheet date.
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Level 2 financial instruments:
Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or
indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 financial instruments:

Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period. The Company periodically reviews its valuation techniques including the adopted
methodologies and model calibrations.

Therefore, the Company applies various techniques to estimate the credit risk associated with its financial
instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that estimates the expected
net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of the individual assets, in order to reflect the credit
risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised financial instruments.

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrurment basis and
reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period.

Operating leases:
Company as a lessee:
The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the partial retrospective approach.

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases except
for short-termy leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-ofiuse assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right of use assets

The Compary recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and irnpairment losscs, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease Habilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets.

Lease liability

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. In
calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made, In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to
future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a
change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short term lease:

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use asset and lease liabilities for short term leases of

w property that has lease term of 12 months or less. The Company recognises lease payment associated

with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over lease term.
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Earnings per share:

Basic eamings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential difution that could occur if securities or other contracts to
issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year, Diluted earnings per share is computed
by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number
of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares.

Foreign currency transaction:

The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also functional currency of
the Company. Transactions in currencies other than Indian Rupees (i.e. foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of ecach reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Retirement and other employee benefit:
4.13.1 Provident fund:

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which is
a defined contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

4.13.2 Gratuity:

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in
respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any,
is deducted. The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on
independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Benefits in respect of
gratuity are funded with an Insurance Company approved by Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority (IRDA).

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through QCI in the period in which they occur.

Remeasurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
4.13.3 Compensated ahsences:

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their
annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the
charge in the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such non-vesting
accumulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of
providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method.
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4.13.4 Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOPs) / Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs):

The Holding Company (Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (“EFSL")) has Employee Stock
Option Plans and Stock Appreciation Rights in force. Based on such schemes, parent entity has
granted an ESOP/SAR option to acquire equity shares of EFSL that would vest in a graded
manner fo company’s employees. Based on group policy / arrangement, EFSL has charged the
fair value of such stock options, Company has accepted such cross charge and recognised the
same under the employee cost.

Property, plant and equipment:

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful life are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes
in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the itemn can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognized in profit or loss during the reporting period, in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than frechold land and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation is provided on a written
down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or put to use whichever is earlier. In
respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upto the date of disposal.

Ags per the requirement of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated the useful
lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule IF for
calculating the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the fixed assets are as follows:

Nature of assets Estimated useful lives
Building {other than factory building) 60 years

Vehicles 8 years

Office equipment 5 years

Computers - servers and networks 6 years

Computers - end user devices, such as desktops, laptops, etc. 3 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of those
components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the time of replacement
thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an itern of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets:

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any. Intangibles such as software are amortised
over a period of 3 years based on its estimated useful life.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be

impaired based on internal/exteral factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of
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cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is
reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed
impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the impairment is reversed
subject to a maximum carrying value of the asset before impairment.

Provisions and other contingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an
appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and,
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a
contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising
from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-oceurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Claims against the
Company, where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as
contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition
of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then
the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.

Income tax expenses:
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
4.18.1 Current tax:

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax” as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

4,18.2 Deferred fax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assefs is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settied or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2021

4.18.3 Current and deferred tax for the year:

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or foss, except when they relate to items that
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current
and deferred tax arc also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

419  Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less.

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions :

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 4, the management is required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are net
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies:

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the management has made

in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements.

5.1 Business model assessment :

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI} and the business model test. The Company determines the business model
at a level that reflects how Company’s of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular
business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how
the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance is measured, the risks that affect the
performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are
compensated. The Company menitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised
prior to their maturity to understand the quantum, the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons
are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the
Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial
assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in
business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets,

5.2 Significant increase in credit risk:

ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2
or stage 3 assets. An asset moves Lo stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Company takes
into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking information.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as described
below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumnstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.
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Fair value of financial instruments:

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to setl an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement
date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are
determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs
to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
estimation is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of
liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding value
adjustments, correlation and volatility.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method:

The Company’s EIR methodology, as explained in Note 4.1.1, recognises interest income / expense using
a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural
life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages
and other characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments and penalty interest and charges.

This estimation, by nature requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life
cycle of the instrument, as well expected changes India’s base rate and other fee income, expenses that
are integral part of the instrument

Impairment of Financial assets:

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets except assets valued at
fair value through Profit & Loss account (FVTPL) requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of
the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses
and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of
factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

The Company’s ECL calculations are outputs of models with a number of underlying assumptions
regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are
considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

e  PD calculation includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions.

e The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a life-time expected credit Joss and the
qualitative assessment

= The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis

¢ Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs

¢  Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as
unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EAD and LGD

¢ Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to
derive the economic inputs inte the BECL madels

1t has been Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and
adjust when necessary.

Impairment of Non-Financial assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exist, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where the carrying
amount cxceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.
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Provisions and contingent liabilitics:

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element
of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and
regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of its business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific case
and considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case. Where the
probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made, a
contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncerlainty ol determining the probability and amount of losses, the Company
takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical
evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these estimates.

Provisions for Income Taxes:

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including judgment on
whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax assessment can involve
complex issues, which can only be resolved over extended time periods.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances,

Asset liability management:

Management has made an assessment of its ability to continue and is satisfied that it has the resources to
continue in business for the foresecable future.

Standards issued but not yet effective :

6.1

There are no new standard or amendment issued but not effective.

Subsequent events :

7.1

Merger of Edelweiss Finvest Limited

Company received the certified true copy of the merger order on March 31, 202 1. The Company has filed
the notice of order with Ministry of Corporate Affairs to give effect to the scheme on April 09, 2021.
Accordingly merged financials are prepared from April 01, 2019, as per requirements of Ind AS 103-
"Business combinations"”.
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8.  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand
Cash in hand

Balances with banks
« in current accounts

As at Asat

March 31, 2021  March 31, 2020
- 0.01

1,200.58 1,416.55
1,200.58 1,4168.56
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9. Derivative financial instruments

The Company enters into derivatives for risk managesnent purposes, These inclfudz hedpes that eiiher meet the hedge accounting requircments or hedges that are ccoromic hedges,
but the Company has elected not to apply hedge accounting requirenients.

As at March 31, 2021 outstanding derivative financial instruments position is Nil.

The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial instruments recorded as assets or Habilities together with their notional amounts / units held as at March 31, 2020,

March 31, 2020
. Notional \ . Notional Fair value
Particulars Unit Currency amount Fair value Asset Unit Currency amount lizhitity
(i} Equity linked derivatives
Stock Futures No of Shares INR 497,353 13.60 | No of Shares INR 825,774 10.14
Less: amounts offset (13.69) (10.14)
(Refer Note $.4j
Subtotal(i) ) - _ -
(ii) Index linked derivatives
Index Futures Index Units INR 27,630 3.42( Index Units INR 29,325 2232
Cptions purchased Index Units INR 415,650 17201
Options sold (written) - Index Units INR 99,300 127.41
Less: amounts offset £3.42) {22.32)
{Refer Note 9.4)
Subtotal(ii) 17205 12741
(iii) Embedded derivatives
Tn market linked debentures® 1.391.66 109,05
Subtotat(iily 1,39L.66 109.05
Total Derivative Financial Instruments 1,563.67 236.46

Note: The notionalfunits held indicate the value of transactions outstanding at the year end and age not indicative of cither the market risk or credit risk.

*An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also ineludes a non-derivative hest contract with the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined
instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-atone derivative, Refer Note 4.3.5 and 4.3.6 for further details.

Hedging activities and derivatives

The Company is exposed to certain risks relating to its engoing business operations. The primary risks managed using derivative instruments are interest rate risk and equity index
risk, The Company™s Tisk managemnent siratepy and hiow it is applicd 1o manage risk are explained in Note 48,

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
The Company has not designated any derivatives as hedging instruments
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Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Currency: Indian rupees in mitlion)
As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

11. Receivables

a) Trade receivables

Receivables considered good - unsceured § 52.95 2,60
Receivables » credil impaired 1.64 73,79
54,59 76.30

Alipwance for expected credit losses
Receivabiles - credit impaired {1.64} (73,70}
Trade receivables (a) {a) 52.95 2.60

b} Other receivables

Reccivabies considered good - unsceured $ - 218
- 2.78

Less : Allowance [or expected credit losses - -
Other receivables (b) {b) - 278
Tatal receivables {a+h) (a+h) 52,95 538

$ Includes reecivables from companies in the same group. The Company has no history of defaults and expeets no default on these seceivables, accordingly no allowance

for ECL has been recognised on these receivables,

<} Reconciliation of impairment allowance on irade receivables:

Asat As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Impalrment allowance measured as per simplified approach

Impairment allowance - opening balance 73.70 56.49

Add/ (less): asset eriginated or acquired {ne1) (72.06) 17.21
Impairment allowance - closing balance 164 73.70
Notes:

1} No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers af the company cither severaliv or jointly with anv ether person
2} No trade or other receivables are duc from firms or privale compantes in which directors is pariner. a divector or a member.

d} Trade receivables days past due

As at March 31, 2021 1-90
Current days 91-180 days i81-360 days > 360 days Total
ECL Rates 0% 0% 100% 100% 100.0%%
Estimated total grass carrying amount at default * - 52,95 .01 - 1.63 54.59
ECL - Simplified approach - - 0.01 - 1.63 1.64
Nef carrying amount - 52.95 - - - §2.95
As at March 31, 2020 1-90
Current days 91-180 days 181-360 days > 360 days Total
ECL Rates 0% 0% 0% 0% 100.0%
Estimated fotaf gross carrying amount at default * - 2.60 - - 73.70 76.30
ECL - Simplified approach - - - - 73.70 73.70
Net carrying amount - 2.60 - - - 2.60

Mincludes receivables from stock exchanges / clearing house. The Company has ro histary of defanlts and expects no defaudt on these receivables, accordingly no

allosauce for ECL das heen recoguised an these veceivahles




Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{Currency: Indian rupees in mitlion)
As at Asat
March 31,2021 March 31, 2020

12. Loans (at amortised cost)

Term Loans;

Corporate credit 844725 3,233.73
Retail credit - 5,142.30
Total gross 8,447.25 8,376.03
Less: Impairment loss allowance (1.52) (347.86)
(Refer note 12.4}
Total net 8,445.73 8,028.17

Collateral :

Secured by

Secured by tangible assets (property inciuding land & building) - 2,218.18

Secured by inventories, unlisted securities, project receivables & other - 4,285.34

marketable sceuritics

Unsecurad 8,447.25 1,872.51

Total gross 8,447.25 8,376.03

1ess: Impairment loss allowance (1.52) (347.86)
{Refer note 12.4)

Total net 8,445.73 8,028.17

Loans in India
Public sector -
Others 8,447.25 8,376.03

Total gross 8.447.25 8,376.03
Less: Impairment loss allowance (1.52) (347.86)

(Refer note 12.4)
Total net 8.,445.73 8,025.17




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{Currency: Indian rupees in million)

12.A Credit quality of assets

The table below shows the credit quatity and the maximum exposure & credit risk based on the Company's year-end stage classification, The amounts presented are gross of impairment allowances.
Details of the Company's internal grading for stage classification are explained in Nate 48,01 and policics on ECL allowances are set out in Note 4.6

2} Credit quality of assefs

Performing
High grade
Standard grade

Non-perferming
Individually impatred

b)

As at March 31, 2021 As a1 Mareh 31, 2020
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Tatal Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
8,447.25 - - 8,447.25 5,140.94 - - 5,140.94
- - - - - 2,420.15 - 2,426,15
- - - B - - 808.94 808.94
8.447.25 - - BA47.25 5,140.94 2,426.15 802._9_4 8,376.03

Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount and correspanding ECL allowances for Ioans and advances to corporate and retail custemers:

The following disclosure provides stage wise recancilintion of the Company's gross carrying amount and ECL allowances far }oans and advances to corporates and refail customers, The transfers of
financial assets represents the impact of stage transfers upon the grass eastying amount and associoted atlowance for ECL. The net remeasurement of ECL arising from stage transfers represents the

increase or decrease due to these transfers,

The *New assets originated /repayments received (net)’ represent the gross carrying amount and associated allowance ECL impact from transactions within the Company's lending portfolio.

Reconcilintion / mavement for the year ended March 31, 2021

Non Credit Impaired Credit Impaired “Total
Siage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Gross Carrying | Allowanece Gross Allowance | Grosscarvying [ Allowanee | Gross carrying { Allowance
Amount for ECL carrying {or ECL Amaunt for ECL Amount for ECL
Particulars Amount
Opcning Balance 5,140.94 .57 2,426.15 158,99 808.94 188.39 8,376.03 347.86
Transfer of financial assets:

Stage 2 to Stage 3 {(1.462.08}), (73.10) 1.462.08 FERIH - -
Remeasurement of ECL arising from transfer of stage (net) - - B - - - - -
New assels originated / repayments received {net) 3,336.69 6.99 (440.,94) (0.08) (552.47) (0.14) 2,343.28 0.77
1.oan purchased (Credit tmpaired) - - - 396.50 - 396.50 -
Loan sale to other financial insitutions - - - (2,108.39) {259.63}) {2,108.39) {259.63)
Amounts wrilten ofl (30.38) (0.04) {323.13) (85.72) (6.66) (.72} (560.17 (37.48)
Closing Balance 8.447.25 1,52 - - - - 8.447.25 §.52

Note:

During the year cnded March 31, 2023, the Company has sold {inancial assels aggregating to Rs.766.20 millions to Edelwciss Assel Reconstruction Company (*EARC"), Edelweiss Rural and
Corporate Services Limited (ERCSL), a fellow subsidiary, on March 3§, 2021, have guaranteed shortfall in realisation of the Guaranteed Cash Inflows over actual Cash Inflows.

12.A Credit quality of assets {continued)

Reconciliation / movement for the vear ended March 31, 2020

Non Credit Impaired Credit Impaired Total
Stage [ Stape 2 Stage 3
Gross Carryinp | Allowance Gross Mlowance | Gross carrying | Allowance | Gross carrying | Allowance
Amount for ECL carrying for ECL Amount for ECL Amount for ECL,

Particulars Amaunt
Opening Balance 18,919.94 273.03 4,828.65 155.66 11813 52.96 23,859.72 481.65
Transfer of Financial Assets:

Stage 210 Stage | 589,74 0.33 (589.74) (0.33) - - - -

Stage | to Stage 2 {59.5m) - 59.50 - - - - -

Stage | to Stage 3 {2.88) - (7.13) - 10.0: - - -
Remeasurement of ECL arising from transfer of stage (nef) - (0.30} - 0.30 - - - -
New assets originated / repayments received (net) * (512,30 (160} 2012.16 158.60 796.60 176.83 2,296.43 333,83
Loan prchased (Credit mpaired). - 4,8H.24 - 4,870.24 -
Loan sale 1o other financial insitutions (13,794.03) (270,89} (3.877.29) (155.33) (4.979.04) (4140 (22,650.36) {467.62)
ECL Atllowznec - Closing Balance 5,140,94 0.57 2,426.15 158.90 818.94 188.39 8,376.03 347.86

* Inciudes loans which were disbursed and subsequently clossified as siage 2 / stage 3 within the same year.
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13.A

Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Currency: Indian rupees in million)

Investments
Summary of Investments
As at March 31, 2021 At fair value ]
At Amortised cost Through OCI D?Si,gr'":::"::t Subtotal At cost {fellow Total
rou ‘ai e s
5=(2+3+H bsid 6 Ty= (14546
[1}] @) Throupgh P&L (3} through Profit (2+3+4) subsidiarics) (6) (7= (1+5+6)
or loss (4)
Equity instrumonts - - - . - 13,945.12 13,945.12
Debt Sccuritics - - 6,095,09 - 6.005.09 . 6,095.09
TOTAL - Gross {A) - - 6,095.09 - 6,095.09 13,945.12 20,040.21
(i) Investments outside India - - - - - - -
(ii} lnvestment in India - - 6,095.09 - 6,095.09 13,045.12 20,040.21
Fotal (B) - - 6,095.09 - 6.095189 13,945.12 20,040,21
Less: Allowance for impairment (C) - - - . . . .
Tota] Net (A-C) - - 4,095.09 - 6,095.09 13,945.12 20,040.21
As at March 31, 2020 Al fair value
At Amortised cost Th h OCI D';;ifrn:t:d:t Subtotal At cost (fellow Total
iroug wu = (25344 bsidiarics) (6 I=(1
[4}] @ Through P&L (3) through Profit 5= } subsidiaries) (6} ()= (1+5+6)
or loss (4)
Equity instruments B - 214,10 - 24,10 4,590.14 4,804.24
Preference Shares 447.61 - 36.99 - 36.99 - 484.60
Security receipts (Refer below note 3) - - 2,703.45 - 2,703.45 - 2,703.45
Units of AIF - - 2,163.64 - 2,163.64 - 2,163.64
Unils of venture fund - - 119.02 - 11902 . 119.02
Warrants - - 52,50 - 52.50 - 52.50
TOTAL - Gross {A) 447.61 - 5,289.70 - 5,289,.70 4,590.14 1032745
(1) Investments cutside India - - N - - - -
(ii) Investment in India 447,61 - 3,289.70 - 5,289,70 4,500.14 10.327.45
Total (B} 447,61 - 5,289.70 - 5,289:70 4,590.14 10,327.45
Less: Allowance for impairment (C) - - - M - - N
Tatal Net (A-C) 447.61 - 5,289.70 - 5.289.70 4,590.14 10.327.45

Notes:

13 Please refer nole 13.8 & 13.C- Investiment details for further details
2) Please refer nole 47 - Fair value measurement for valuation methodalogy
3} Dusing the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company has sold financial assels apgregating to Rs.4850.90 millions (1set of provisions & losscs) 1o various asscl reconstructions company trusts
(*ARC Trusts®) and has acquired security receipts (SR) from ARC Trusts amounting to R5,2677.77 millions. The Board approved committee approved sucl: sale of financial asscts to ARC
Trusts, Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, prescribed under seetion £33 of the Campanics Act, 2013, requires substantial risks and rewards to be transferred for the purpose of de-recognition of
such financial asscts frem the Company’s financial statements, Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (EFSL), holding company,
fellow subsidiary, on March 31, 2020, have guarantecd significant risks and assumed significant rewards in respect of an aggregate volue of financial assets of Rs 1688.31 millions sold 10 ARC
Trusts. As a result, these financial assets arc de-recognized in Company’s financial statements. Further, as the risks and rewards continues in ERCSL and EFSL, these continue to be accounted as
financial assets in the consolidated financial statements of the Groug and the respective consequent expected credit loss will be recorded in the consolidated financial statements of EFSL or

ERCSL.

and Edclweiss Rural and Corperate Services Limited (ERCSL), a




Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{Currency: Indian rupees in million)

13.  Investments (continued)

13.B  Investments in preference shares measured at amortised cost:
i) Credit quality of assets:
The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposuse to credit risk based on the Company's year-end stage classification. The amounts presented

are gross of impairment allowances, Details of the Company's internal grading for stage classification are explained in Note 48.D.1 and policies on ECL
aliowances are sct out in Notc 4.6

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars Stagel | Stage Il | Stape [1I Tota] Stage [ Stape II | Stape 11} Tofal
Pt fonning -
High grade - - - - 447.61 - “ 447.61
- - - - 447.61 - - 447.61

ii) Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount for investments in preference shares:

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

Particulars Stape I | Stage }1 | Stage 111 |  Total Stage 1 Stage 11 | Stage ITI | ‘Total
Gross carrying amount - opening balance 447.61 - n 447,61 - - - -
Assets acquired or recognised - - 447.03 - - 447.03
Unwinding of discount (recognised in interest income) 52,39 - - 52.39 0.58 - - 0.58
Changes to confractual cash flows due to medifications not

resulting in derecognition _ . R B _ _ . _
Assets derecognised or matured (500.00) - - (500.00) - - - -
Closing balance - - - - 447.61 - - 447.61

Please refer note 13.C- Investment details for further details




Edel Firance Company Limited

Notes to the financla) statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{Currency: Indian rupees in million)

13

lavestments {continued)

13.C Serip wise details of Tnvestments

Equity Instruments (Fully paid up)

At fair value thraugh profit and Ioss account

Unquoted
Tamilnad Mercantile Bank Limited
Metropolitan Stock Exchange Of India Limited
Gentnist Consumer Durables Private Limited
Fincare Business Services Limited

Tosal {1}
Equity Instruments (Fully paid up)
A1 Cost
Feliow Subsidiaries
Edelweiss Relail Finance Limited
ECL Finange Limited
Ldeiweise Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Investment In Compulsory Convertible Pref Shares
tnvesunents in Cempulsory Convertible Prefl Shares - ERCSL
Tn Ak in Compalsory C ible Beh, ¢
.01% Un-Sccured Compulsary Convertible Debenture Edehweiss
Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Total (B}
Preference Shares (Fully paid up)
At fair value thrangk profit and loss account
Zera coupon Series D noncumulative compulsorily convertile
prelerence shares af Bright Lilecare Private Limited

At Amortisced Cost
2% Nogt Cumulative Optionally conventible Preference shares of
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Total {C)

Secsurities Receipts
At fair value througk profit and loss account

EARC Trust 5C 297 - Series [

EARC Trust SC 337

EARC Trust $C 391

EARC SAF -3 Trust - Series [

Edelweiss ARF-1 Trust Seheme-2

Edelweiss ARF-1 Trust Scheme-3

Edelweiss ARF-I Trust Schere-4

Edelweiss ARF-I Trust Scheme-S

RARE ARC 059 Trust

RARE ARC 047 Trust

ACRE 100 Trust

Total (D}

Units of AIF
At fair value shrovgh prafit and loss account

Edelweiss Private Equity Tech fund

Edelweiss Value and Growth Fund

Faering Capital India Evolving Fund If

Paragon Partners Growth Fund - I

Edelweiss Crossover Opportunities Fund

Edchveiss Stressed and Trouhled Assets Revival Fund

Tdelwveiss Real Eslale Opportunities Fund

Edghweiss Credit Oppertunities Fund

Edehveiss Infrastructure Yield Phas Fond

Edelweiss India Special Siwatons Fund

Total (E}
Units of venture fund
At fair value through profil and lass account
KAE Capilat Fund (Indiz)
KAE Capital Fued I (India)

Total (F)

Debt Securitics

At fair value through profit and loss account
9.75% Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited Perpetual Bonds
Ecap Equities Limited- NLD
Edehweiss Asset Recenstruction Company Limited - NLD

Tutal (G)

Gthers - Warrants

Ai fair value through profit and loss aceount
Mangal Royal Jewels Private Limited
Shree Mangal Ablshan Private Limited
Shree Mangal Jewels Private Limited
Bhanti Shipyard Limited (Rs 5.5 paid up)

Tatal (1}

Tatal (A+B-C+DHEAFHGHHG

As at March 31, 2421 As 2l Mareh 31, 2020
Face Value (Rs.) Quantity Amount Face Yaluc {Rs) Quantity Ameount
- - - 14 36,072 2.54
- - - 1 37.020,800 51.78
- - - i0 2913 52.718
B - - 0 2.503.580 107.00
- 214,10
16 3.060,000 264.00 10 3.060.000 264.00
- - - t 84,388,184 1,200.00
i 39715267 2.854.97 10 7.058,823 1,200.00
L3 10,060,000 1,600.00 100 10,000,000 1,600.00
i 15,254,550 326.14 10 15,254,550 326.14
100 1,359,955 500.00 - - -
1,000 9,060,000 S.000.01 - - -
£3,945.12 4,590.14
. - . 7.664 5219 36.99
- - - 1000 500,000 447.61
- 484.60
- - - 1.00 338,621 5938
- - - 1.00 47,325 0.05
- - - 1.600.00 73,950 62,24
- - - 89.71 19,600 19.712
- - - 1,000 31,324 -
- - - 1,000 43,899 0.04
- . - 1000 12.679 6.03
- - - 1,000 35370 0.04
- - - 106000 1,241,000 1,054.85
B - - 1.060.00 1.168,66% 77000
- - - 1,000.00 790,508 750.50
- 2,703.45
- - - 100,000 569 136.73
B . - 100,000 1553 32550
- “ - 1,000 17,690 1938
- - - (] 8BB.580 135.64
- - - [,043 272,537 -
. - - 10,000 o0 12.05
- - - 10,600 45.068 550.86
- . - 1,000 230,763 226,61
- - - 10,600 59,000 702,57
. - - 10,000 13316 3430
- 2.163.64
- - - 100,000 4] 894
B - - 100,000 558 119.08
- 119.02
1,000,000 71 6022 - - -
1061,000 45,852 6,019.84 - - -
106,000 107 15.03 - - -
£,095.09 -
- - - 10 6,000,000 21.00
- - - i 1,500,000 5.25
- - - 10 7.500,000 26.25
- - - 10 2647313 -
- 2,50
20.040.21 1 0.327.4_5_

methe aies for i




Edel Finance Company Limited

MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{Currency: Indian rupees in million)

14,

15.

16.

Other financial assets

Deposits placed with/ for exchange/ depositories

Margin placed with broker (refer note 9.4)

Acerued interest on margin

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received

Current tax assets {(net)

Advance income taxes {Net of provision for tax )

Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax assets / (Liabilities)

Loans / Security Receipts

Provision for expected credit loss

Receivables
Provision for expected credit foss

Investments and other financial instruments
Long tenin capital loss

Unuased tax loss
Accumulated losses

Emplovee benefit obligations
Disallowances under section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Borrowings
Adjustment of effective interest rate on borrowings

Property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Difference between book and tax depreciation

Investments and other financial instruments
Unrealised (gain) / loss on derivative transactions (net)
Unrealised (pain) / loss on investments (net)

Share issuc expenses and other expenses
Others

As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
0.95 -
0.24 500.92
- 18.23
46.83 16.73
48.02 535.88
330.50 i58.36
330.50 15830
0.38 23474
0.4] 18.55
- 21.51
2522 -
0.26 1.94
- (0.03)
{0.01} (0.30)
- 39.80
6.77 (54.97)
- 0.47
30.71 {0.52)
290.78 261.19
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Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Currency: Indian rupees in million)
As at As at
March 31, 2021  WVarch 31, 2020

18. Other non-financial assets
(Unsecured considered good, unless stated otherwise)

Input tax credit 1.58 71.67
Capital Advances - 70.00
Prepaid expenses 0.24 0.01
Vendor Advances 245 1.77
Advances to employees 0.48 0.01
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received - 0.01
Deposits - others 0.03 0.03
Contribution to Gratuity Fund - 0.61

4.78 150.11

19. Trade Payables
Payable to :
Trade payables to non-related parties 15.32 37.70

(includes sundry creditors, provision for expenses,customer payables

and net payable for settfement to clearing house )

Trade payables to related partics 25.57 190.81
40.89 228.51

19.A Details of dues to micre and small enterprises

Trade Payables includes Rs.Nil (March 31, 2020 : Rs.Nif} payable to “Suppliers” registered under the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. No interest has been paid / is payable by the Company during the
year to “Suppliers” registered under this act. The aforementioned is bascd on the responses received by the Company
to its inquiries with suppliers with regard to applicability under the said Act.

20, Debt securities
At amortised cost
(Refer note 20.4 and 20.B)

Secured
Benchmark linked debentures 8,334.89 10,138.76
Unsecured
Benchmark linked debentures 2,330.92 3,021.41
10,665.81 13,160.17
Debt Securities in India 10,665.81 13,160.17

Debt Securities outside India - -

10,665.81 13,160.17




Edel! Finance Company Limited
Notes to the financiai statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{Currency: Indian rupees in million)

20 Debt securities (continued)
20.A Details of debt sccurities :

Benchmark linked debentures
Benchmark linked debentures are secured by way of a pari passu mortgage and charge over the mortgage premises, a charge on the receivable and
investment and corporate guarantee from the ultimate holding company.

In casc of benchmark linked debentures, the interest rate is linked to the perfonmance of the underlying indices and is fluctuating in nature.

Certain benchmark finked debentures have a clause for an early redemption event which is automatically triggered on the achievement of pre
determined benehmark index level (s)

20.8  Maturity profile of debt securities are set out below:

Secured Benchmark Linked Debentures Unsecured Benchmark Linked Debentures
Maturity Month Amount outstanding as at Amount outstanding as at
March 31, 2021 iarch 31, 2020 Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
May-2020 - 119.00 . -
Jun-2020 - 544.40 B -
Jul-2020 - 1,124.50 - -
Aug-2020 - 108.00 - 380.00
Sep-2020 - 325.50 - 16.00
Oct-2020 - 45.50 - 32.50
Nov-2020 - - . 10,00
Dec-2020 - 10.00 . 20.00
Jan-2021 - - . -
Mar-2021 - 10.00 - -
Jul-2021 40430 404.30 - -
Sep-2021 387,10 887.10 - -
Oct-2021 - - 2R0.00 280.08
Dec-2021 12.50 12,50 - -
Jan-2022 27.50 27.50 28.50 28.50
Feb-2022 768.90 768.90 10.00 10.00
Mar-2022 1,143.00 1,143.00 - -
Apr-2022 15.00 15.00 - -
May.2022 271,50 271.50 - -
Jun-2022 2,348.60 2,348.60 - -
Aug-2022 47.90 47.90 - -
Sep-2022 10.00 10.00 - -
Dec-2022 2,50 2.50 - -
Dee-2023 1.50 7.50 - -
Jan-2024 3350 33.50 - -
Feb-2024 4,70 4.70 - -
Mar-2024 304,00 300.60 - -
Jun-2027 170.00 §70.00 - -
Fan-2027 u - 40.00 40.00
Jan-2028 - - LA74.00 1,924.00
6,454.50 8,741.40 2,232.50 2,735.00
Associated accruals * 1.886.39 1,397.36 08.42 286,41
Total 8,334.89 16,138.76 2,330.42 3,021.41

* Interest accrued but not due is payable on maturity of debentures.




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Currency: Indian rupees in mitlion)

21.

Asat As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Borrowings other than Debt Securities
At amortised cost
Seciired
Term joar from bank - 219.36
(First Pari Passu charge on the current assets of the Company which
includes trade and other receivables, loans and cash and cash
equivalents with Letter of Comfort)
{Refernote 21.A)
Unsecured
Loan and advances from related parties 7.136.05 1,629.75
[Repayable on demand, carry interest - 11.34%-15.20% p.a.
(Previous year - 12.10% to 17.90%p.a. )}
7,136.08 1,849.11
Borrowings in India 7,136.05 1,849.11
Borrowings outside India -
7,136.05 1,849.11
21.A Details of Borrowings other than Debt Securitics
Maturity Month Loan from banks - Amount outstanding as at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Rate of interest 11.00% p.a. 11.00% p.a.
Jun-2020 - 25.00
Sep-2020 - 25.00
Dec-2020 - 25.00
Mar-2021 - 25.00
Jun-2021 - 25.00
Sep-2021 - 25,00
Dec-202t - 25.00
Jun-2022 - 25.00
Mar-2022 B 25.00
- 225.00
Associated aceruals * - {5.64)
Total - 219.36

* Associated accruals include interest acerucd & effective interest rate amortisation. Interest acerued but not duc is payable on next intercst payment date.




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{Currency: Indian rupees in million)

22. Subordinated Liabilities
At amortised cost
(Refer note 22.4)

Unsecured
Subordinated debentures
Privately placed redeemable non-convertible debentures

Subordiated liabilities in India
Subordiated liabilities outside India

As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
161,12 161.09

161.12 161.09

161.12 161.09

161.12 161.09

22.A Maturity profile and rate of inferest of subordinated liabilities are set out below:

Maturity Month

Unsecured suberdinated lishilitics - Interest Rate 11,00% p.a.
Amount outstanding as at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Jul-2025 150.00 150,00
150.00 150.00
Add: interest accrued* 11.12 11.09
Tatal 161.12 161.09
* Interest accrued but not due is payahle on next interest payment date.
23. Other financial liabilities
Other payables 13.99 0.03
Accrued salaries and benefits 2.23 (.45
16.22 0.48
24. Current tax liabilities (net)
Provision for taxation (Net of advance tax) 18.16 163.23
18.16 163.23
25. Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity (Refer note 37.4) 0.78 6.55
Compensated leave absences 0.25 1.14
1.03 7.69
26. Other non-financial liabilities
Statutory liabilities* 19.34 37.40
Advances from customers - 26.74
Others - 2.85
19.34 66.99

*® Includes withholding taxes, profession tax and other statitory dues pavables




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{Currency; Indian nipees in million}

27.

27.A

27.B

27.C

As at March 31,2021 As at March 31, 2020
No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Equity share capital
Authorised :
Equity Shares of Rs.100 each 225,000,000  22,500.00 275,600,000  27,500.00
Preference shares of Rs. 100 each 50,000,000 5,000.00 - -

275,000,000 27,500.00 275,000,000  27,500.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up;

Equity Shares of Rs.100 each 53,667,388 5,566.75 10,000,000 1,000.00
Sharcs pending allotment - - 43,323,638  4,332.37
(As per scheme of merger transferee Company has issued 130 equity shares

of Rs. 100 each for every 100 cquity share of the transferor Company of Rs.

10 each)

55,667,388 5,566.75 53,323,638 5,332.37

Reconciliation of number of shares

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year 53,323,638 5,332.37 10,600,000 1,000.00
Shares issued on account of merger - - 43,323,638 4,332.37
Additional equity shares issued during the year 2,343,750 234.38 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 55,667,388 5,566.75 53,323,638 5,332.37
Notes:

Company has alloted 43,323,638 fully paid-up equity shares of Rs.100 each aggregating 1o Rs. 4,332.37 million to Edelweiss Financial Services
Lirited as part of consideration other than cash on account of merger with Edelweiss Finvest Limited. The Appointed Date of the merger was April
1, 2019.

During the financial year 2020-21 the Company has issued 2,343,750 fully paid-up equity shares of Rs.100 each aggregating to Rs. 234.38 million
at a premium of Rs. 28 per share to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited.

Terms/rights attached to equity shares :

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 100/-, Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share held,

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity sharcholders will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Comparty, after distribution
of all preferential amounts, if any, in propertion to the nuinber of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/assaciates

As at March 31, 202t Ag at March 31, 202¢
No of shares % holding  Noofshares % holding
Holding company
Edetweiss Financial Services Limited* 55,667,388 100% 53,323,638 100%

55.667.388  100.00% 53,323,638 100.00%

* including 6 shares held by Nominees of EFSL




Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Currency: Indian rupees in million)

27.D Details of shares held by sharcholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No of shares % holding  No of shares % holding

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited® 55,667,188 100.00% 53,323,638 E00.00%

55,667,388 160.00% 53,323,638  100.00%

* including & shares held by Nominees of EFSL
27.E There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for the sale of shares / disinvestment.

28, Instruments entirely equity in nature

. As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020
No of shares Amount No of shares Amount

Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)
(16,500,000 CCPS - 0.01% Compulsory Convertible
Preference Shares (“CCPS™) of face value of Rs, 100/-) 16,500,000 1,650.00 - -

16,500,000 1,650.00 - -

28 A. Reconciliation of number of shares

As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 202¢
No of shares Amount No of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year - - - -
Additional shares issucd during the year 16,500,000 1,650.00 - -
Cutstanding at the end of the year 16,500,000 1,650.00 - -

Terms of Compuisory Convertible Preference Shares ("CCPS"}
The Company has issued and alloted 65,00,000 §.01% CCPS on March 9, 2021 convertible into Equity shares on March 8, 2026 at a ratio of 1:1

The Company has issued and alloted 1,00,00,000 0.01% CCPS on March 20, 2021 convertible into Equity shares on March 19, 2026 at a ratio of
1:i




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{Currency: Indian rupees in milion}

29. Other Equity

As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
a. Capital redemption reserve 84.34 84.34
b. Capital Reserve (3,999.11) {3,999.11}
¢. Securities premium reserve 4,485.38 4,410.64
d. Statutory reserve 1,238,59 1,238.59
¢, Retained camings 3,352.35 4,626.59
f. Deemed capital contribution - Equity 225 225
g. Deemed Distribution - Preference Capital (Folder) (52.97) (52.97)

h. Impairment reserve 32,27 -
5,143.10 6,319.33

20.A

a.

Nature and purpose of Reserves

Capital redemption reserve
The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

. Capital Reserve

Capital reserve is created on merger of Edelweiss Finvest Limited in Edel Finance Company Limited.

. Securitics premium reserve

Securities premium reserve is used fo record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for
limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

. Statutory reserve

Reserve created under 45-1C(#) in The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 a sum not less than twenty per cent of its
net profit every year as disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared.

. Retained earnings

Retained eamnings comprises of the Company’s undistributed earnings after taxes.

Deemed capital contribution - Equity
Deemed capital contribtion relates to share options granted to eligible employees of the Company by the parent
company under its employee share option plan.

. Deemed Distribution - Preference Capital {Holder)

Represent discount on fair value of investment at the date of the investment in group company’s preference shares as
required under Ind AS 109. This amount will get amortise in Statement of profit and loss over maturity of such
preference share.

. Impairment reserve

A3 per the RBI gireular RBY2019-207170 dated 13th March, 2020, where impairment allowance under Ind AS [0Y
is lower than the provisioning required under IRACP (including standard asset provisioning), NBFCs (CICs) shall
appropriate the difference from their net profit or loss after tax to a separate ‘Impairment Reserve’. Further, no
withdrawals shall be permitted from this reserve without prior permission from the RBI.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2021

{Currency: Indian rupees in million)

29.8 Movement in other equify

a. Capital redemption reserve
QOpening balance
Add/(less): Additions during the year

b. Capital Reserve
Opening balance
Add/(less): Additions during the year

c. Securities premium reserve

Opening balance
Add/(less): Premium Received on issue of Debentures
Add/(less): Premium Received on issue of equity shares

d. Statutory reserve

Opening balance
Add: Reserve created during the year

¢, Retained earnings

Opening balance
Less: Loss for the year
Add/(Iess): Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Amount available for appropriation
Appropriations:
Transfer to statutory reserve
Transfer fo impairment reserve

f. Deemed capital contribution - Equity

Opening balance
Add/(less): ESOPs charged during the year

2. Deemed Distribution - Preference Capital (Holder)

Opening balance
Add/(less): Additions during the year

h. Impairment reserve

Opening balance
Addf{less): Additions during the year

Total = (at+b+etd+etf+gth)

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
84.34 84.34
84.34 84,34
{3,999.11) -

- (3.999.11)
(3,999.11) (3,999.11)
4,419.64 4,592.08

- (172.44)
65.74 -
4,485.38 4,419.64
1,238.59 1,151.61

- 86.98
1,238.59 1,238.59
4,626.59 4,802.64
{1,241.56) (90.79)
{0.41) 1,72
3,384.62 4,713.57
- (86.98)
(32.27) -
(32.27 {86.98)
3,352.35 4,626.59
2.25 2,25
2.25 2.25
(52.97) -
- {52.97}
(52.97) (52.97)
32.27 -
32.27 -
5,143.1¢ 6,319.33
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{Currency: Indian rupees in milion}

30. Interest Income

on financial assets measured at amortised cost
Interest on loans
Interest on fixed deposits with banks
Interest income on preference shares
Other interest Incoime
On margin with brokers
On others

on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Interest income on debt securities

31. Dividend Income

Dividend on securities held for trading

32. Feeincome

Processing and other fees

33, Net gain on fair value changes

Net gain/ (foss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss
On investments and securities held for trading
On derivatives financial instrument
On security receipts

Fair value changes
Realised
Unrealised

34. Other income

Miscellaneous income
Interest on Income Tax Refund

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
882.56 1,173.19
0.31 5.15
52.39 0.58
5.58 123.48
15.68 -
369.10 644.53
1,325.62 1,946.93
- 0.71
- 0.71
22.31 41.27
22,31 41.27
296.49 (81.12)
226.15 843.06
6.04 333.23
528.68 1,095.17
535.59 2,122.26
(26.91) (1,027.09
528.68 1,095.17
1.11 0.55
0.12 3.51
123 4.06
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{Currency: Indian rupees in million) For the year ended For the year ended

35.

36

37

3T.A
%)

b)

March 31, 2021 March 31, 20620

Finance costs

On financial liabilities mcasured at amortised cost

Interest on borrowings other than debt securities 17298 279.13
Interest on debt securities 1.785.37 1,521.42
Interest on subordinated liabilities 16.53 16.51
Other finance cost and bank charges 11.30 130.88

1,986.18 1.947.94

Impairment on financial instruments
On financial instruments measured at amortised cost

Expected credit loss

Loans and financial instruments (218.66) 451.02
Loss on Sale of financial instruments 1,006.99 20.13
Trade receivables 495 49.29

793.28 520,44

Employce benefits expense

Salarics and wages (refer note 38.0) 34.07 £00.86
Contribution to provident and other funds 2,38 6.40
Expense on Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOP) firefer note below) (3.11}) 321
Staff welfare expenses 0.73 1.75

34,07 112.22
Notes:

Edeiweiss Financial Services Limited (“EFSL") the holding Company has granted an ESOP option to acquire equity shares of EFSL that would vest
in a graded manner to Company’s employees, Based on group policy / arrangement, EFSL has charged the fair value of such stock options,
Company has accepied such cross charge and recognised the same under the employee cost.

Employee Benefits
Defined contribution plan - Provident funds

The Company recognised Rs. 1.86 milfion {(Previous year : Rs. 4.59 million) for provident fund and other contributions in the Statcmuent of profit
and loss.

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for gratuity, a non-centributory defined benefit amangement providing
lumg-sam gratuity benefits expressed in terms of finab monshly salary and year of service, covering all employees. The plan provides a lump sum
payment to vested employees af retirement or fermination of employment in accordance with the rules laid down in the Payment of Gratuity Act,
1972,

The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit abligation for gratuity were carried out as at March 31, 2021, The
present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related cument service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Prajected Unit
Credit Mcthod.

Based on the actuariak valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the
Company’s financial statements as at balance sheet date:
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
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37.A  Employee Benefits (continued)
b) Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

i} Movement in defined benefit liability
The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for defined benefit liability and its components:

Defined benefit obligation

Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Opening Balance 10 12.66
Cusrent service cost 0.38 30
Interest cost 013 0.51
8.61 14.47

Other comprehensive Income
Remecasurement loss (gain);
Actuarial loss (gain) arising from:

Experience (0.39) {0.63)
Financial assumptions .09 0,50
Demographic assumptions ((.19) -
(0.49) {0.13)
Others
Transfer In/ (Out) (5.87) {5.26)
Benefits paid (L10) {0.97)
Closing Balance 115 8.1
ii) Components of defined benefit plan cost: Far the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Recopnised in Statement of profit or loss
Current service cost 038 1.30
Interest cost 0.61 0.5
Total 0.39 1.81
Recognised in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability/asset) (0.49) {0.13)
Total (0.49) (0.13)
ili) Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Asscts
Asat Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Fair Vaiue of Plan Assets at start of the year 2.16 115
Contributions by Employer 0.10 0.97
Benefits Paid (0.10) (0.97)
Interest Income on Plan Assets 312 0.14
Re-measurements - -
Retumn on plan assets excluding amount included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability/(asset) .32 (0.13)
Effect of acquisition/ {divestiture) M .
Changes in foreign exchange rates - -
Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of the year 2.60 2.16
Actual Retwrn on Plan Assets 0.44 0.02
Expected Employer Contributions for the coming year - -
iv) Net Liability/ (Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet
Asat As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 20206
Present Value of DBO 217 8.11
Fair Value of Plan Assets 2.6l 2.17
Liability/ (Assel) recognised in the Balance Sheet {0.44) 5.94
Funded Status [Surplus/(Deficit)] . 044 (5.94)
Ammuurt mot recopized a8 asset [Efféct of fimiling nef [.21
as5eis to asset ceiling)
Of which, Short tenn Liability 0.16 (5.94)
Experience Adjustment on Plan Liabilities: (Gain)/Loss {0.39) (0.63)
v} Percentage Break-down of Total Plan Assets
Asat As at
March 31, 2021 Mareh 31, 2020
Equity instrurnents % 0%
Dbt instnuments 0% %
Reat estate 0% 0%
Derivatives 0% 0%
Investment Funds with Insurance Company 106% 100%
Of which, Unit Linked 83.6% 83.7%
Of which, Traditional/ Non-Unit Linked 14.3% 16.1%
Asset-backed securities 0% 0%
Structured debt 0% 0%
Cash und cash cquivalents 0.1% 022

Total 100.00% 100,80%
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(Currercy: Indian rupecs in miilion)
37.A  Employce Benefits (confinued)

b) Drefined benefit plan - Gratwity
vi) Movement in Other Comprehensive Income

As at Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Balance at start of year (Lossy Gain 040 1.90
Re-measurements on DBO
4. Actuariat {Loss) Gain from changes in demographic assumptions 0.19 -
b. Actuarial (Less) Gain from changes in financial assumptions {0.09} (0.50)
. Acturrial (Loss) Goin from experience over the past year 0.39 0.63
Re-measurements on Plan Assets
Retum on Plan assets, excluding amount included in net interest on the net defined 032 (©.13)
benefit liability/ (assat)
Changes i the eTect of lkmiting a net defined Lenelit nsset to the uaset ceiling cachuding (1.21) 2.28
amount included in net interest on the net defined benefit Hability! (asset)
Balance at end of year (Loss) Gain 04.00 4.18
vii} Movement in Surplus/ (Deficit)
Asat As at
March 31, 202t March 31, 2020
Surplus/ (Deficit) at start of year (5.93) (12.65)
Net (Acquisition)/ Divestiture - -
Net Transfer (In)f Out 5.87 5.27
Movement during the year - -
Current Service Cost (0.38) (1.29)
Tast Service Cost - u
Net Interest on net DBO (6.01) {0.52)
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - -
Re-measurements - {Losses)! Gains 041 2.29
Contributions/ Benefits 0.10 097
Sumplus/ (Deficit) at end of year {0.76} (5.93)
Actuarial assumptions:
The following were the principal achazrial assumplions at the reporting date: As at Ag at
Particulars iviarch 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Discount Rate 5.00% 5.90%
Salary Growth Rate 7.00% 7.00%
Withdrawal/Attition Rate (based on cateporics) 25% 13% -25%
Interest Rate on Net DBO (% p.a.) 5.90% 7.00%
Mortality Rate [ALM 2012-14 TIAEM 2012-14
Expected weighted average remaining working lives of employees 3 4

Notes:
a) The discount rate are hased on the benchmark yields avaitable on Government Bonds at the valuation date with terms maiciing that of the liabilities.

b) The estimates af future salary increases lakes into account the inflation, seniority. promotion and other relevant factors.
¢) Assumptions regarding fitture mortality experience are set in accordance with the statistics published by the Life Insurance Corporation of India.

Sensitivity analysis:

Reasanably passible changes at the reporting date to ong of the relevant astyarial assumptions, helding other assumptions constant, would have affected the
defined benefit ohligation by the amounis shown below.

As at March 31, 2021 As at Mareh 31, 2020
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Salary Growth Rate {(+/- 1%%) 0.09 (0.08) 048 (0.45)
Discount Rate (+/- 1%5) (0.09) 0.10 (045 0.50
Withdraw! Rate (+/- 1%9%) - - {0.03} 0.03

The above sensitivity analysis have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obfigation in isolation and asswming there are no other changes
in market conditions at the reporting date. In practice, generally it does not occur. When we change one variable, it affects to others. In calculating the
senslivity, project unit credit method at the end of the reporting period has been applied.

¢} Compensated absences ¢
ides for accumulated compensated abscnces as at the balance sheet date using projected unit credit methed based on actuarial valuatien,




Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{Currency: [ndian rupees in million)

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
38. Other expenses
Advertisement and business promotion 0.09 3.3
Auditors' remuneration {refer note 38.4) 2,15 136
Commission and brokerage 8.91 50.78
Cammunication 0.08 0.67
Directors sitting fees 0.9¢ 1.22
Insurance 0.2 0.01
Legal and professional fees 238.98 247.91
Printing and stationery a0.04 042
Rates and taxes 802 72.09
Rent {refer note 38.C and 38.D) 7.83 19.97
Repairs and maintenance {refer note 38.1) - 0.17
Electricity charges {refer note 38,D) - 0.01
Compuler expenses 1.42 -
Computer software 032 L7
Corporate social responsibility -Donation (refor note 38.8) 35.00 -
Carporate guarantee commission 8.58 -
Clearing & custodian charges 38,12 8.83
Rating support fees (refer note 38.0} 3.66 1.09
Membership and subscription - 0403
Mutual Fund Expenses 0.01 -
Office expenses {refer note 38.D) 872 0.69
ROC Expenses 002 0.02
Securities {ransaction tax 18,34 -
Seminar & Conference - 0.62
Goods & Service tax expenses 161.53 19.13
Stamp duty 3.16 20.68
Stock exchange expenses 317 -
TFraveliing and conveyance 0.01 1.01
Miscellaneous expenses .79 0.495
Others 0.17 0.07
Housckeeping and sccurity charges frefer note 38.0) - 9.26
545,14 521.57
38.A Auditors' remuneration:
As a Auditer
Audit fees 0.3% 1.18
Limited Review 1.05 a.97
Certification .65 .10
Reimbursement of expenses 4.06 0.11
2.15 2.36
38.B Dotails of CSR Expenditure:
Gross Amount required to be spent by the Company as per the provisiens of Section 135 of
Companies Act 2013, 3498 33.70
Amount Spent (pald in cash)
i) Construction/ acquisition of any assets - -
i£) On purpose other than (i) above 3500 -

Antount Spent (yet to be paid in cash)
i) Construction/ acquisition of any asscis - -
if) On purposc other than (i) above - -

35400 -
Amount paid to EdelGive Foundation 3500 -
{refer note 45 related party disclosure)
Paid to external parties - -
35.00 -

The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited. Edelweiss group is conscious of ils Corporate Social Responsibility and,

had accordingly established a CSR arm, "EdelGive Foundation” in the year 2008, As an amount of Rs. 308.14 miilion (representing more than 2% of the
...consolidated profit of the group) was spent by the group as 2 whole towards CSR activitics during the year ended March 31, 2020, the Company hesnot

incurred the prescribed CSR expenditure on a standalone basis during the year ended March 31, 2020,

38.C Operating Icascs
The Company has not 1aken premises on operating lease. Rental expenses for the year ended March 31, 2021 apgregated to Rs. 7.83 million (Previous year:
Rs. 1997 million} which has been included under the head other expenses — Rent in the Statement of profit and loss are allocations from the fellow
subsidiarics.

38.D Costsharing
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, being the holding company along with fellow subsidiaries incurs expenditure like Group mediclaim, insurance, rent,
electricity charges ete. which is for the commoen benefit of jtself and its certain subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries including the Company. This cast se
cxpended is reimbursed by the Company on the basis of number of employees, time spent by empioycees of other comparies, actual identifications cte. On the
same lines, employees’ costs expended (if any) by the Company for the benefit of fellow subsidiaries is recovercd by the Company. Accordingly, and as
identificd by the miu the expenditure heads in note 37 ard 38 include reimbursements paid.




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Currency: Indian rupees in million)

39,

Income Tax

Component of income tax expenses

Current tax

Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years
Adjustment in respect of deferred tax

Deferred tax relating to temporary differences

Total tax charge for the year (refer note 39.A)

Current tax
Deferred tax (refer note 39.B)

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
. 276.76
£212.90) (60.39)
- 4.34
{29.59) (147.04)
(242.49) 73.67
(212.90) 216.37
(29.59) (142.70)

39.A The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Loss before taxes
Statutory Income Tax rate

Tax charge at statutory rate
Adjustment in respect of carrent income tax of prior year

Tax effect of ;
Income / Items not subject to tax or chargeable at lower tax rate
Dividend Income

Non deductible expenses
Others

Impact of tax rate changes (between two accounting periods)

Others

Profit from EARC Trusts (taxed on realisation)

Effect of non-recognition of deferred tax asset on current-pertod losses
MAT reversal as per new tax regim

Share issue expenses and other expenses

Others

Current Tax Expenses Reported in Statement of Profit and Loss

Effective Income Tax Rate

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
(1,484.0%) (17.12)
25.168% 25.168%
{373.51) (4.31)
(212.90) (60.39)
- (0.18)

- 4,41

- 26.23

- 0.08

160.98 85.14

- 339

- 0.08

182,94 19.22

(242.49) 73.67
16.34% -430.32%
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Edel Finanee Company Limited
Notes ta the firancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{Currency: Indian rupees in mitlion)

40. Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted eamings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity sharcholders of the Company with the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period adjusted for assumed conversion of ail dilutive potential
cquity shares,

Tor the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Net profit attributable to equity holders of the Cempany (A) {1,241.56) (90.79)
Weighted average number of shares
- Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 53,323,638 10,000,000
- Number of equity slures issued during the year 2,343,750 43,323,638
Totat number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 55,667,388 53,323,638
Total number of CCPS outstanding at the end of the year 16,500,000 -
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the (B) 54,633,570 53,323,638

year (based on the date of issuc of sharcs)

Weighted average number of diluted equity shares outstanding during 55,371,926 53,323,638
the year (o]

Adjusted net profit for diluted EPS (D) (1,241.56) (90.79)
Basic eamings per share (in rupees) (A/B) (22.73) (1.70)
Diluted camings per share (in rupees) (22.73) (1.70)

41. Centingent Liability & Commitment:
Contingent Liability

In the ordinary course of business, the Company faces claims and assertions by various parties. The Company assesses such
claims and assertions and monitors the legal environment on an ongoing basis, with the assistance of external legal counsel,
wherever necessary.The Company records 2 liability for any claims where a potential loss is probable and capable of being
estimated and discloses such matters in its financial statements, if material. For poteatial losses that are considered possible, but
not probable, the Company provides disclosure in the financial statements but does not record a lability in its accounts unless the
lass becomes probable.

The Company believes that the outcome of these proceedings will not have a matedally adverse effeet on the Company’s
financial position and results of operations.

Details of contingent Hability

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Taxation matters of assessment year AY 2014-15 & AY 2015-16 in
. . h . ... 114.88 114.88
respect of which appeal is pending with tax authorities

The Company has received demand notices from tax authoritics on account of disallowance of expenditure for carning excrpt
income under Section 14A of Income Tax Act 1961 read with Rule 8D of the Income Tax Rules, 1962, The company has filed
appeal/s and is defending its position. Based on the favourable cutcome in Appeliate proceedings in the past and as advised by
the tax advisors, company is reasonably certain about sustaining its position in the pending cascs, hence the possibility of outflow
of resources emhodying econnmic henefite on this ground is remote”

Commitment

Fo meet the financial needs of customers, the Company enters into various irrevocable commitments, which primarily consist of
undrawn commitment to lend.

Details of commitment

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining te be executed on capital
account (net of advances) and not provided for - -
21 Undrawn committed credit fines - 1,639.89
- 3,345.13




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2621

{Currency: Indian rupees in million)

42.  Segment reporting

Primary Segment (Business segment)

The Company being CIC, has only capital business segment in the previous year i.e March 31, 2020. Due to Edelweiss Finvest Limited being merged with itself,
the company has identified and disclosed segment information in accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 108§ — Operating Scgments. Information provided

in segment is accurate and complete, The identified segments are i.c. Capital based business, Treasury business, Financing business & others.

Segment Activities covered

Capital based business Tncome from investments and dividend income
Treasury business Income from Treasury operations

Financing business Wholesale and refail financing

Income for each segment hos been specifically identified. Expenditure, asscts and liabilitics are cither specifically identified with individual scgments or have
been aliocated to segments on a systematic basis. Based on such allocations, segment disclosures relating to revenue, resufts, assets and Hebilities have been

prepared.

Secondary Segment

Since the business operations of the Company are primarily concentrated in India, the Company is considered to operate only in the domestic segment and

thercfore there is no reportable geographic scgment.

Segment information as at and for the year ended March 31, 2021

Particulars Fma-ncmg Cap:tz}l based Tre:.asury Unallocated Total
business husiness Business
Revenue frem operations
Interest income 877.64 73.32 374.66 - 1,325.62
Other operting income 23.40 0.73) 529.55 - 552.22
Total revenue from operations 901.04 72.59 904.21 - 1,877.84
Interest expenses 1,041.11 151.31 793.76 - 1,986.18
Other expenses [,164.92 2546 185,33 - 1,375.71
Total expenses 2,206.03 176.77 979.09 - 3,361.89
Segment profit/(loss) before taxation (1,304,99) (194.18) (74.88) - (1,484.05)
Income tax expenses - - - (242.49) (242.4%)
Profit for the year (1,304.99) (104.18) (74.88) 242.49 (1,241.56)
Other comprehensive income 0.24 (0.84) 0.19 - (0.41)
Total comprehensive income {£,304.75) {105.02) (74.69) 242.49 (1,241.97)
Segment assets - 29,748.35 54.14 6§5.98 30,418.47
Segment liabilitics - 18,040.48 - £8.14 18,058.62
Capital expenditure 0.03 6.06 0.02 - on
Depreciation and amortisation 1.7 0.22 1.30 - 322
Significant non-cash items {net) 221.35) (0.34) 25.75 - (195.94)




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

{Currency: Indian rupecs in million)

42, Segment reporting {continned)

Segment informztion as at and for the year ended March 31, 2020

Particulars Fma.ncmg Cﬂpm}l based Tre?sury Unallocated Fotal
business business Business
Revenue from operations
Interest income 1,172,50 6.42 768.01 - 1,946.93
Other operting income 41.35 1323.08 962.84 3.94 1,141.21
Tetal revenue from operations 1,213.85 139.50 1,730.85 3.54 3,088.14
Interest expenses 738.36 250.69 942.34 16.55 1,947.94
Other expenses 783.11 44.43 329.76 0.02 1,157.32
Total expenses 1,521.47 205.12 1,272.10 16.57 3,105.26
Sepment profit/(loss) before taxation (307.62) {155.62) 458,75 {12.63) (17.12)
Income tax expenscs - - - (73.67) (73.67)
Profit for the year {307.62) (155.62) 458.75 (86.30) {90.79)
Other comprehensive income 0.07 1.56 0.09 - 172
Total comprehensive income (307.55) (154.06) 458.84 (86.30) (89.07)
Segment assets 11,393.01 6,962.74 8,751.86 417.82 27,525.43
Segment liabilities 5,882.49 2,230.91 7,597.10 163.23 15,873.73
Capital expenditure 0.59 0.06 0.75 - 1.40
Depreciation and amortisation 1.19 0.38 [.52 - 3.09
Significant non-cash items (net) {497.25) 0.31 (1,023.19) - {1,520.13)




Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Currency: Indian rupees in million}

43. Change in liabilities arising from financing acitivies

. As at Changes in Fair " As at
Particulars April 1, 2020 Cash Flows value Others (net) March 31, 2021
Debt securities 13,160.17 (2,818.64) - 324.28 10,665.81
Borrowings other than debt securities 1,849.11 5.297.10 - (10.16) 7,136.05
Subordinated liabilities 161.09 - - 0.03 161.12

15,170.37 2,478.46 - 314.15 17,962.98

. As at Changes in Fair . As at
Particaiars April 1, 2019 Cash Flows value Others {net) March 31, 2020
Debt securities 2227576 {9,765.03) - 649.44 13,160.17
Borrowings other than debt securities 1,546.35 275.65 - 27.11 1,849.11
Subordinated labilities 161.17 - - (0.08) 161.09

23,983.28 (9,489.38) - 676,47 15,176.37

* Includes the effect of accrued but not paid interest on borrowing, securities premium on issue of debi securities
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Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Curreney: Indian nzpees in million)

45, Disclosure of Related Party Transactions pursuant to IND AS 24 “Related Pacty Transactions”

List of related parties and relattonship:
HoMing Company

Fellow subsidiarics with whom the transactions have taken place in
current or previous year

Assaciate Companics

Key Management Personnei (KMP)

\,\%

“ 7N

(‘\
%
M Q‘f BAI«

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

Allism Finance Private Limited

ECap Equities Limited

ECL Finance Limiled

Edelcap Securities Limited

EdelGive Foundation

Edelwsiss Allcrnative Asset Advisors Limited

Edelweiss Asset Management Limited

Edelweiss Assct Reconstruction Company Limited
Edelweiss Broking Limited (%l 26 March 20213

Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited {till 26 March 2021)
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited (1ill 26 March 2021)
Bdelweiss Gallagher [nsurance Brokers Limited

Edelweiss General lnsurance Company Limited

Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited (till 26 March 2021)
Edetweiss Housing Finanee Eimited

Edeiweiss Investment Advisors Linsited

Edelweiss Private Equity Tech fund

FEdelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Edelweiss Securities And Investmerts Private Limited
Bdelweiss Securities Limited (till 26 March 20213
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited
Edelweiss Value and Growtl: Fund

India Credit Investment Fund (1

Edelweiss Broking Limited {from 27 March 2021)

Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited (from 27 March 2021)
Edelweiss Finance & livestments Limited (from 27 March 2021)
Edelweiss Securities Limited (from 27 March 2021)

Edelweiss Glebal Wealth Management Limited {from 27 March 2021)

Amit Dhawan (1ill 15 November 2020)

Ravindra Dhobaie

Sheetat Gandhi (til] 30 June 2019}

Ritesh S Jain {from 27 December 2019 till 4 May 2020)
Deepak Kundnlia { from 1 October 2020}

Niket Jeshi {from 2 May 2018 till 10 July 2019)
Nishant Salvi ( from 6 fanuary 2026 to 3§ March 2020}
Prachi Mathus { 1 September 2020 till 31 January 2021)
Ashish Kehair (from 23 May 2018}

Puja D'souza

Sunil Pharterpekar {from | Aprii 2021)

Sanjay Shah (till 14 January 2020)

Bharat Bakshi

Kunnagagzran Chinniah (till 32 December 2019)

Vinod Juneja

Atul Ambavat

Managing Director & CEO

Chief Firangial Offzcer
Chief Financial Officer
Chief Financial Officer
Chief Financial Officer
Company Seeretary
Company Secrelary
Comipany Secretary
Non-cxecutive Director
Non-executive Director
Independent Dizector
Independent Director
Independent Director
Inddependent Dircctor
Tndependent Director
Independent Director




Edet Flnanee Company Limlted

Notcs to the finxnclal statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Curtency: Indian rupces in million)

45, Brisclosure of Related Party Travsactions pursuant to IND AS 24 "Refated Party Transactions”
Sr.No. Nature of Transaction Related Party Name 2020-21 20 19-2gl
‘Fransaciions with related parties;
n Capital account transzetions
1 Issue of cquity shares ta (ineluding seeurilics premiurm) Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 30000 -
2 Issue of Cempulsory Convertible Preference Shares to Edelwaiss Financial Services Limited 1,650.00 -
3 Purchase ol ECL Finance equily shares Edelweiss Rurat & Comporale Services Limiled 4,906.17 w
4 Sale of ECL Finance equity shores Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 6,706.17 -
5 Invesimenis in preference shares (Face Value) of Edelwsiss Rural & Corporale Services Limited - 500,00
6 Redemption of preference shates (Face Valug) of Edelweiss Rural & Corporale Services Limited 500.00 -
7 Investoents in units of Edelweiss Value and Growth Fund - 0.03
Edelweiss Private Equity Tech fund - oo
] Investments in Compuisory Convertible Preference Shares Ldelweiss Rural & Comporate Services Limised 500.00 B
G [nvestments in Compulsory Convertible Debentures Ldelweiss Rural & Corporate Serviees Limized 2,400.00 -
1¢  Investment in cquity shares Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1,65497 -
(I}  Current sccount (ranszctions
1 Short term Ioans taken from Edclweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 29.31289%  16,040.08
ECap Equitics Limited 4,599,00 -
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 4,114.00 -
Short term loans taken from (Max of debit!/ credit) Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 5.000.00 -
ECap Equities Limited 4,599.00 -
Edelweiss Finaucial Services Limiled 2,110.00 -
2 Short teom |oans repaid fo Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limiled 24,676.53 1396619
ECap Equities Limited 5.799.00 -
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 2,000.00 -
Short term laans repaid to {Max of debil/ credit) Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 4,250.00 -
ECap Equities Limited 1,744.00 -
Edelweiss Finangiol Scrvices Limited 2,000.00 -
3 Short term loans given 1 Edeiweiss Rural & Corperale Services Limited 530452  95,356,27
Edehweiss Broking Limited 1,000.60 -
ECap Equities Limited 26,77750  LOGG.OC
Edehweiss Allemative Asset Advisors Limiled 300,00 .
Edelwgiss Sccuritics And Investments Private Limited 850.00 -
Short term louns given to (Max of debit/ credit) Edciwciss Rural & Corparate Services Limited 2.00060 -
Edelweiss Broking Limited 1,000,860 -
ECap Equities Limited 6,084.00 -
Edelweiss Altemative Assct Advisers Limited 500.00 -
Edelweiss Securilies And Investments Privale Limited 5060 .
4 Short term loans given repaid by Edelweiss Rural & Corporale Services Limiled 529952 7550823
Edelweiss Broking Limited LO0000 .
ECap Equities Limited 19,512.30 590.00
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 500.00 -
Edelweiss Securitics And Investments Private Limited T00.00 -
Short term loans given repaid by (Max of debit/ credin) Edelweiss Rural & Comparate Services Limited 2,000.00 -
Edelweiss Broking Limited 50060 -
ECap Equitics Limited 127000 -
Edelweiss Allernative Assel Advisors Limited 400.60 -
Edelweiss Seeuritics And Investments Private Limited Fo0.00 -
5 Redemption - Debentures by Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 40323 411.46
6 Buyback / redemption- benchmark finked deb 5 ECap Equities Limited 1,51581 447626
7 Interest expense on loans tuken from Edelweiss Rural & Cortporate Services Limiled 75.62 75.84
ECap Equitics Limited 69.35 169.73
Eidelweiss Financial Services Limited 187 -
8 Interest cxpense on benchmark linked debenures Ecap Equities Limited - 208
ECL Finance Limiwd - 1.67
Edelweiss Rural & Carparaie Services Limiled - 6.7t
9 Othgr finaneial cost paid to Edclweiss Asset Management Limited - 51.83
Edelweiss Broking Limited 3725 L9t
Edelwiiss Allermative Asset Advisers Limited - 87.02
Edelweiss Global Wealth Managemen! Limsited 3823 -
FECL Finanee Limited 51960
Edelweiss Securnitics Limited 104




fdet Finanee Company Eimited

Notes to the financlal statements for the year ended Marchk 31, 2021

(Currency: Indian rapees in million)

45, Blsclosure of Related Party Transactions pursuant to IND A5 24 "Related Party Transactlons”
Sr.No. Nature of Transaction Related Party Name ZUZD-Zil Z019-1
Carrent account transactions
10 Interest cxpense on subordinate debt Edclweiss Takie Life Insurance Company Limited - 16.38
ECap Lquilies Limiled 7.7 -
ECL Finance Limited 6.17 -
Edelweiss Rurat & Corporate Services Limited 2.64 -
1 Interest income on preference shares issued to Edelweiss Rurat & Corperate Scrvices Limited 52.39 -
12 Intgrest inceme received from securities Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 6.95 6.3%
Edelweiss Asset R Cempany Limiled 318.99 579.13
Edclweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 2462 -
13 Interest income on short term loan from ECap Equities Limited 170,66 1711
Edelweiss Broking Limited 43.00 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Scrvices Limited 26.89 7212
Edelweiss Allemative Asset Advisors Limited 6.83 -
Edclweiss Sceuritics And Imvestmenis Private Limited 0.10 -
i4  inlerest income on margin from Edelweiss Securitics Limiled - 3.38
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited 5.58 120.09
L5 [Interest income an debentures (CCD) Edelweiss Rural & Comporate Services Limited 0.01 -
16 Enterprise service charges paid to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 0.03
Edelwciss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 0.82
17 Legal and professional fees paid to Edelwciss Rural & Corparate Services Limited - 0.01
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited D40 -
Edelweiss Altermative Asset Advisors Limited 32.63 -
18 Amanger fee paid 1o Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited - 106.63
19 Lon portfolio transferred to ECL Finance Limited - 17,780.12
20 Cost relmbursement received fom (net) Edelweiss Financial Services Limited in 1.67
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - it
Ldelweiss Broking Limited - .19
Edetweiss Sceurnties Limited - .84
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited - 0.01
ECap Equities Limited - 0.02
Ldelweiss Asset Management Limited - £3.35
Edclwiiss Altemative Asset Advisors Limited - 1841
2] Cost reimbursemnents paid 1o (aet) Edelweiss Finaneial Services Limited 0.70 0.14
Hdelweiss Seeuritics Linited 0.03 0.0l
ECap Equities Limited 003 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 199 Le3
Edelweiss Custadial Services Limited 0.01 0.0
Edclweiss Broking Limited 1.0} -
ECE Finance Limited oon -
22 Equity invesiment puschased from ECap Eguitics Limiled . 20520
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited . 5178
23 Lquity investmens sold 1o ECap Equities Limited 14941 -
Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited 10621 -
24 Other investment purchased from ECap Euquities Limited 6,046.74 1,653.40
Edeleap Securities Limited - 160.99
25 Other investment sold to ECap Equitics Limited 327236 -
26 Shared premises cost paid (net) Edelweiss Sccurities Limited [HA .45
ECap Lquitics Limited 335 6.34
Edelwgiss Rural & Curporate Serviees Limited 271 5.38
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited - .08
Edelweiss Broking Limited .44 5.49
Edelweiss Custedial Services Eimited ¢.01 409
ECL Finance Limited .09 -
27 Raung support fees paid to Edelweiss Financial Senices Limited a7 424
Edglweiss Ruraf & Corporne Services Limited 12 -
28 Corporate social responsibility EdelGive Foundation 35.00 -
2% Corpotate guarntes support fre patd te Edglweiss Financial Services Limited 233 575
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 8.58 -
30 Commission and sub-brokerage paid to Edelweiss Securitics Limited 511 5747
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Lintited 6.67 33958
31 £,0an purchased from Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limiled - 2,039.40
ECap Equitics Limited 396.50 4,704,70




Edel Finance Company Eimited
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{Currency: Indian rapecs in million}

45. Disclosure of Related Party Transactions pursuant to END AS 24 "Related Party Transactlons”
Sr.No. Nature of Ti 1 Related Party Name 2020-21]  2019-20
Currert account transactions

32 Loanssoldte Edehweiss Asset R ion Company Limited 766.20 -

India Credit Investment Fund H [,342.19 -
33 Secwrity Receipts Purchased from Edebweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limiled - 1.288.13
34 Security Receipts Sold to Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - 4,038.80

Allium Finance Private Limited §8.38 -

India Credit Investment Fund II 1.835.34 .
35 Clearing charges paid to Edclweiss Custodizl Services Limited 3789 873
36 ESOP Cost Edclweiss Sceuritics Limited - 234
ECL Finance Limited - s
37 R ion to Key Manag, Pecsonnel {Refer note 1} Amis Dhawan 162 8.52
Sheetal Gandhi - 1.77
Ravindr Dhobale - 1.80

Deepak Kundalia 2,51 -
38 Directors silling lees Sanjay Shah - 032
Bharat Bakshi 034 032
Kunnasagaran Chinniah - 0.E4
Al Ambavat 018 .22
Vined Juncja 0.18 .22

Sunil Pharterpekar 0.30 -

{ll)  Sccondary market transactions

1 Sale of securities (Stock in trade) 1o ECL Finance Limited 460.04 665.86
Edel Finance & In Limited 1094 0.84
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limiled - 128.4%

ECap Equitics Limited [.504.76 -

Edclweiss Investment Advisors Liited 1,633.94 -

Edeleap Securities Limiied 56393 -
2 Purchase ol securities (Stock in trade) from ECL Finance Limited - 1,363.93
Ecap Equitics Limiled 55082 97.4%
Edelwsiss Finance & Investments Limited - 101.35
Edelweiss Rurat & Corporate Services Limited . 3,552.54
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisers Limited - 0.93
3 Amount paid to Broker for rading in cash segment Edetwaiss Securitics Limited 759599 9.946.04
4 Amount received from Broker for trading in eash segment Edelweiss Securilies Limited 8.083.33 10,137.27
5 Margin placed wilh broker Edelweiss Custodial Services Eimited 11,881,720  37,158.33
Edelweiss Securities Limited - 637.10
Edelwiiss Broking Litnited - 1,537.60
6 Margin withdrawn from broker Fdclweiss Custudial Services Limited 12,329.36  37,478.36
Edclweiss Securities Limited - 593.79
Edelweiss Broking Limited . 1.337.67
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{Curreney: {ndian mpees in mitlion)

45. Disclosure of Related Party Transactlons pursuant to IND AS 24 "Related Party Trassactions”
Sr.No. Naturc of Tra Related Party Name 2020-21]  2019-20
iy S dary market tra i
7 Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment ECL Finance Limited 0.00 0.60
Edelweiss Altemaltive Asset Advisors Limited - 0.04
Edelwziss Broking Limited 0.0% .13
Ldelweiss Custodial Services Limited - 4.0l
Edelweiss Financial Serviges Limited 0.0 .00
Ldelweiss Global Wealth Menagement Limited - 060
Edclweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 0.3
Edclwceiss Securities Limited . 048
Eelweiss Gallagher Insurance Brokers Limited 0.0 .
8 Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment ECL Finance Limited - 0.00
Edelweiss Broking Limited 0.0t 0.02
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limiled - 400
Edclweiss Sccunties Limited 0.00 _
Edelweiss Finance & lnvestments Limited 009 -
Edelweiss Cuslodial Services Limited 0.01 -
Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited 2.01 -
(IV})  Balances with related parties
1 [nvestments in equily shares Ldelweiss Retail Finance Limited 264.00 264.00
Edelweiss Assct R tion Company Limited 326,14 326.14
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 185497  1,200.0¢
ECL Finance Limited - 1,%00.00
Edclweiss Housing Finance Limited 163000 1,000.00
z Investments in compulsory convertible preferences shares Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 500,00 -
3 1 in compuisary co. ible debentures Edelweiss Rurl & Corparate Services Limited 9,000.00 -
4 Investments in units of Edelweiss Privaie Equity Tech fund - 13673
Ldelweiss Value and Growth Fund - 13550
5 Deb and bonds (Tnv ) af ECap Equitics Limited 6,019.84 -
Edclwciss Retail Firance Limited 5840 -
Edelweiss Asset Reconsiuction Company Limised 1503 -
6 Subordinate debt issued to Edglwiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Lisnited - L50.00
ECap Equities Limited 70.00 -
ECL Finance Limited j6.00 -
Edelweiss Rural & Cerporate Services Limited 24.00 -
7 Benchmark debentures licld by Ecap Equitics Limited - 70,00
ECL Finance Limited - 56.00¢
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 2400
8 Debenture and bonds (Sccuritics held for Trading at fair value) of’ Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited - 38.51
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruciton Company Limited - 424802
9 Investment in Prefercace Shares at Fair value held of Edelweiss Rurat & Corporate Services Limiled - 447.61
19 Interest agrrued on benchmark linked debeatured held by Ecap Equilies Limited - 520
ECL Finance Limited - 4.16
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 178
Il Iaterest acrrued on subosdinate debt Edeiwveiss Tokio Lifi: Insurance Company Limited - 11.09
ECap Equities Limited 519 -
ECL Finance Limited 415 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1,78 -
{2 5hor term Ioans taken fromy Edclweiss Rurnl & Cotporate Scrvices Limited 5,000.00 363.63
ECap Equilics Limited - 1,200,00
Edelweiss Finaneial Services Limited 2.110.00 -
13 Short term loans given o Edclweiss Rural & Comporate Services Limited 551 0.51
ECap Equities Limiled 526970 100500
Edelwuiss Sceuritics And Investments Private Limited 150.00 -
14 Trade Payables to Edelweiss Financial $erviees Limited 012 747
Bdetswelss Sexurities Lifitsd 0.00 2746
ECL Finance Limiled 13.79 Lis17
Bdelweiss Custodial Serviees Limited - .01
tcap Lquilies Limited 0.7 .63
Bdelweiss Alterative Asset Advisors Limited L7 18,70
Ldelweiss Glabal Wealth Managestent Limiled 4,53 8,12
Bdelweiss Rural & Comorate Services Limsted 286 187
Edetweiss Assct Management Lissited - 6,20
Edclweiss $roking Limited 2.31 0,53
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45, Disclosure of Related Party Transactlons pursuarnt to IND AS 24 "Related Party Teansactions"
Sr.No. Nature of Transaction Related Party Name 202021 201920
Balances with related parties (contingzed)
iS5 Other Payable Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.47 -
Lidetweiss Sceuritics Limited 493 207
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited - 0.04
LCL Finance Limiled n17 0.37
Fdelweiss Broking Limited .19 257
Edelweiss Altgmative Asset Advisars Limited - 1.30
Edelwviss Finanee & Investments Limited 538 0.74
Allium Finance Private Limited 1.50 -
16 Trade Receivables from Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 0.02
Edlel Finance & Ir Limited 0.00 238
Edelweiss Broking Limited - 0.32
Fdetweiss Custodial Services Limitad 0.76 -
Edetweiss Sceuntics Limiled 5382 -
Bdelweiss General Insurence Company Limited o8 B
i7  Other Receivable Edelweiss Rural & Carperaic Services Limited 0.65 -
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 311 -
ECL Finance Limited 0.33 -
India Credit Invesimznt Fund I 238 .
18 Interest receivable-Accrued <Group Conpany Ldehweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 4.54 377
ECap Equilics Limitcd 1143 .25
Edclweiss Broking Limited 201 -
Edelweiss Allernative Asset Advisers Limited w7 -
Edcelweiss Securitics And Envestments Private Limited 0.09 -
Ydelweiss Securitics Limiled - 0.63
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited - 1760
19 Tnterest payable -Accrued -Group company Edelweiss Rural & Corparate Services Limited 12.7¢ 40.76
ECap Equities Limiled 6.08 25.36
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited .28 -
20 Interest receivable - acented on debentures and bonds of Edelweiss Reail Finance Limited 1.82 1.83
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - 0.97
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.0 -
21 LSQP cost payable Edelwelss Financial Services Limited - 002
22 ESOP cost reccivable Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limiled - 0.02
23 Transfer of gratuity linbility on account of employee transfer to Edclweiss Housing Finanee Limited - 901
24 Transfer of gratuity linbility on account of cmployee transfer from Edeteap Securitics Limited - 0.08
Ldelweiss Rural & Comporale Services Limited . 087
ECL Finance Limitcd . 0.21
25 Margin placed with broker Edelweiss Custedial Services Limiled a0 347.65
Edelweiss Securities Limiled 05 153.28
26 Comorate Guarantee taken from Edelweiss Rural & Corparate Services Limited 766.20 -
Edzlweiss Financial Services Limized - 2.749.30
Notes

Tnformation relating te remuneration paid 1o ey managerial person mentioncd above excludes provision madc for gratuity, leave encashiment and provision made for

bonus which are provided for group of employees on an overall basis, These are included an cash basis,

by the Companies act.

Remuneration to KMPs shall be withit: the limit as preseribed
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46. Capital Management

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI) sets and monitors capital adequacy requirements for the Company from time to
time. The Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, stipulate that the Adjusted Net Worth of a
CIC-ND-SI shall at no point in time be less than 30% its risk weighted assets on balance sheet and risk adjusted
value of off-balance sheet items as on date of the last sudited balance as at the end of the financial year.

The Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, further stipulate that the outside liabilities of a
CIC-ND-8I shall at no point of time exceed 2.5 times its Adjusted Net Worth as on date of the last audited balance
as at the end of the financial year.

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base to maintain investor, creditor and shareholder confidence
and to sustain the future development of the business. The impact of the level of capital on shareholders’ returns is
also recognised and the Company recognises the nced to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be
possible with greater gearing and the advantages and security afforded by a stronger capital position,

Although maximisation of the return on risk-adjusted capital is the principal basis used in determining how capital is
allocated within the Company to particular aperations or activities, it is not the sole basis used for decision making.
Account is also taken of synergies with other operations and activities, the availability of management and other
resources, and the fit of the activity with the Company’s longer-term strategic objectives. The Company’s policies in
respect of capital management and allocation are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors.

The Company has complied with mimmum stipulated capital requirement which has been disclosed in note 50 in the
financial statements.
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47.
41.A

47.B

47.C

Fair Value measurement;

Valuation Principles

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal {or most advantageaus)
market at the measurement datc under current market eonditions (i.e., an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using a
valuation technique. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classificd based on a hicrarchy of valuation techniques:

Level 1 — valuation technique using quoted market price: financial instruments with queted prices for identical instruments in active markets that company can
access at the measurement date.

Level 2 — valuation technique using obscrvable inputs:Those where the inputs that arc used for valuation and arc significant, arc derived from dizectly or
indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s kfe.
Levet 3 — valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: Those that include one or more unchservable input that is significant to the measurement

Refer note 4.9 for more details on fair value hierarchy
Valuation goverance framework

The Company's fair value methodology and the goverance over its models includes a number of controls and other procedures to ensure appropriate
safeguards are in place to ensure its quality and adequacy. All new product initiatives (including their valuation methodolagies) are subject to approvals by
vatious functions of the Company including the risk and finance functions,

Where fair values are determined by reference to externally quoted prices or observable pricing inputs to models, independent price determination or
validation is used. For inactive markets, Company sources aliernative market information, with greater weight given 1o information that is considered to be
more relevant and reliable.

The responsibility of ongoing measurement resides with the business and praduct line divisions. However Finance department is also responsible for
establishing procedures governing valuation and ensuring fair valucs are in compliance with accounting standards.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fafr value by level of the fair value hierarchy

As at March 31, 2021 Level 1 Level 2 Levet 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis

investments
Other debt securitics - 6,095.09 - 6,095.09
Total investments measured at fair value - 6,095.09 - 6,095.09
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47.  Fair Value measurement: (Continued)

As at March 31, 2020 Level I Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assels measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Derivative financial instruments

Exchange-traded derivatives 63.56 125.47 - 189.03
Embedded derivatives in benchmark-linked debentures - - 1,361.66 1,391.66
Taotal derivative financial instruments - A 63.56 125.47 1,361.66 1,580.69
Financial assets held for trading
Other debt securitics - 4,910.66 - 4,910.66
Equity instruments 159.92 - - 159.92
Total financial assets held for trading - B 159.92 4.910.66 - 5.070.58
Investments
Equity shares - - 214.10 214,1¢
Preference shares - 36,99 36.99
Securily receipls - - 2,7063.45 2,703.45
Units of AIF - - 2,163.64 2,163.64
Units of venture fund - - 119.02 119.02
Warrants 52.50 52.50
Total investments measured at fair value « C - - 5.289.70 5,289.70
Total (A+B+C) 223,48 5,036.13 6,681.36 11,940.97

Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Derivative financial instruments
Exchange-traded derivatives 59.86 100.01 - 159.87
Embedded derivatives in benchmark-linked debentures - - 109.05 108.05

39,86 100.01 189.05 268.92
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47.

Fair Value measurement: (Continyed)
D. Valuation techniques:

Debt securities:

Fair value of debt securities is derived based on the indicative quotes of price and yields prevailing in the market as at the reporting date. The Company has used guoted price of nationni
stock exchange wherever honds are traded actively. In cases where delbt sceurities are not activity traded, the Company has used CRESIL Corperate Bond Valuer model for measuring fair
value.

Security receipts

The market for these securities is not active. Therefore, the Company uses valoation techaiques to measure theit fair values. Since the security receipts are less liguid instruments therefore
they are valued by discounted eash flow models, Expected cash flow levels are estimated by using quantitative and qualitative measures regarding the characteristics of the underlying
assets including prepayment rates, defavil rates and other economic drivers, Securilics receipls with significant unobeervabie valualion inputs are classified as Lovel 3.

Equity instruments, preference shares, warrants and units of mutual fund:

The majority of equity instruments are actively traded on stack exchanges with readily available active prices on a regular basis. Such instruments are elassified as Level 1. Units held in
funds are measured based an their published net asset value (NAV), taking into account redemption and/ar other restrictions. Such instruments ate also classificd as Level L. Unquoted
cquity instruments, preference shares and warrants are initially recognised at ransaction price and re-measured 3t cach reporting date ot valuation provided by cxternai valuer at jnstrament

level, All ungueted instruments are ¢lassificd at Level 3.

Units of AIF Fund and Venture Fund

Units held in AIF finds zre measered based on their published net asset value (NAV), toking into account redemption andfor eiher restrictions, Such instruments are classilied as Level 3

Embedded derivative:

An embedded derivative is 2 component of a hybrid instrument that also fncludes a pan-derivative host contracs witk the effect that some of the cash Nows of the combined i

in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative.

istrument vary

Company uses valuation models which ealculate the present value of expected future cash flows, hased upor ‘no arbitrage’ principles, Inpuis to valuation models are determined from
ohservable market (Indices) data wherever possible, including prices available from exchanges, dealers, brokers. company classify these embedded derivative as level 3 instruments.

Exchange traded derivatives:

Exchange traded derivatives includes index/stock options, index/stack futures, compeny uses exchange traded prices to value these derivative and classify these instrument as fevel 1.

E. Therc have been no transfers between levels during the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020
F. The foflewing table shows a reconciliation of the epening balances and the closing balances for fair value nicasurements in Level 3 of the fair vatue hierarchy.
Financizal year ended March 2021 Sccu.nty Units of AIF Units of Equity Preference Warrants Total
receipts venture fund  instruments Shares
Investments - at April 1, 2020 2,703.45 2,163.64 119,02 214.10 36,99 32.50 5,289.70
Purchase - 1,028.67 - - - - 1,028.67
Sale / redemption (2,705.63) (3.203.26) {128.42) (255,62} (41.70% (52.50)  (6,391.13)
Transfer into level 3 - - - - - . .
Transfer from level 3 - - - - - - -
Prefit / Fair value change for the year recognised in prefit or loss 6.18 10.95 G40 41.52 4.71 - 72.76
Investments - at March 31, 2021 - - - - - - -
Unreatised gain/(Loss) related to balances held at the end of the year - - - - - - -
Financial year ended March 2020 Secu‘rl:y Units of AIF Units of . Equity Preference Orh‘er Fota]
receipts venture fund _ instruments Shares Securities

Investments - at April 1, 2019 845.69 290.68 91.65 6.58 327 - 1,271.87
Parchase 7.047.59 £780.05 - 256.97 - 150.00 9.234.61
Sate / redemption (4.873.40) (243.90) 0.91) - - - (5,118.21)
Transfer into level 3 - - - - - - -
Transfer from level 3 - - - - . - -
Profit / Fair value change for the year recognised in profit or loss 316.43} 336.81 28.28 (49.45) (0.28) (97.50) (98.57)
Investments - at March 31, 2020 2,703.48 2,163.64 119.02 214.10 36.99 52.50 5,289.70
Uarcalised gain/(Loss) related to baances held at the end of the year {574.93) 358,79 59.13 {“4.61) {0.28) {112.06) (31396}

The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening balances and the closing balances for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Embedded Options

Assots Liabilities Net Balance
Financial year ended March 2021
at April 1, 2020 1,391.66 105.058 1,282.61
Issuances
Setilements / transfer (1,391.66} {109.05) {1,282.61)
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss

Investments - 2t March 31, 2021

Embedded Options

Assels Liabilities Net Balance
Financial year ended Murch 2020
at April 1, 2019 32750 422.49 (94.99)
Issuances (1.58) 2,12 3.70)
Settlements / transfer {60.13) 61.53 (121.66)
Changges in [air value recognised in profit or foss 1.657.45 (467.89) 2,125.34
investments - at March 31, 2020 1.391.66 109.05 1.282.61
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
(Currency: Inndian rupees in million)

47. Fair Value measurement: (Continued)

H. Fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value:
The table below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying amounts and fair values of the Company's financial instnaments that are not carried at fair

value in the financial statements. This table does not include the fair values of non-financial assets and non—financial liabilities.

As at March 31, 2021 Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
Financial Asscts

Loans 8,445.73 - 8.445,73 8.445.73
Investments 13,945.12 13,945.12 - 13,945.12
Total Financial Assets 22,390.85 13,945.12 3.445.73 22,390.85
Financial Liabilitics

Debi sceuritics 10,665.81 9,105.60 - 9,105.60
Borrowings (other than debt securitics) 7,136.05 7,136.05 - 7,136.05
Subordinated Liabilities 161.12 171.89 - 171.89
Total Financial Liabilities 17,262,98 16,413.54 - 16,413.54
Off balance-sheet items

Undrawn cormmitments - - - -
‘Fotal Off balance-sheet items - B - -
As at March 31, 2020 Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets

Loans 8,028.17 - 7.844.55 7,844.55
Investments 503775 4,590.14 447.61 5,037.75
Total Financial Assets 13,065,92 4,590.14 8.292,16 12,882.30
Financial Liabilitics

Debt sceuritics 13,160.17 10,938.88 - 10,938.88
Borrowings {other than debt securitics) 1,849.11 1,858.69 - 1,858.69
Subordinated Liabilitics 161.09 174.60 - 174,00
‘Total Financial Liabilities 15,170.37 12,971.57 - 12.971.57
Off balance-sheet items

Undrawn commitments 1,639.89 - 058.81 658.81
Total OIf balance-sheet items 1,639.89 - $58.81 658.81
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{Currency: Indian rupees in million}
47, Fair Valoe measurement: (Continued)

L. Valuation Methodologies of Financial Instruments not measured at fair value

Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded and measured at fair
value in the Company's financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only. The below methodologies and assumptions relate
only to the instruments in the above tables and, as such, may differ from the techniques and assumptions explained in notes.

Short Term Financial Assets and Liabilities

Carrying amounts of cask and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade payables approximate the
fair value because of their short-term nature. Difference between carrying smounts and fair values of other financials assets and other financial liabilities is not
significant in each of the years presented.

Financial assets at amortised cost
The fair values financial assets measured at amortised cost arc estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual cash Nows using actual or
estimaied yields and discounting by yields incorporating the counterpartics® credit risk.

Issued Debt
The fair value of issued debt is estimated by a discounted cash flow model.

Off balance-sheet

Estimated fair values of off-balance sheet positions in form of undrawn commitment are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual
committed cash flows after applying the credit coversion factor, using actual or estimated yiclds and discounting by vields incorporating the counierpartics’
credit risk.
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48. Risk Management

A. Introduction and risk profile

Risk is an isherent part of Company's business activities. When the Company cxtends a corporate or retail loan, buys or sclls sccurities in market, or offers other producis or services, the
Company takes on some degree of tisk. The Company's overall objective is 10 manage its businesses, and the asseciated risks, in a manner that balances serving the interests of its customers
arwl investors and protects the safety and soundness of the Company.

‘The Company believes that cffective risk management requires:

1) Acceptance of responsibitity, including {dentification and escalation of risk issues, by a1l individuals within the Company;
2) Ownership of risk identificaticn, datz and ma within each of the lines of business and Corporate: and
3} Finnwide structares for nisk govemance

The Campany strives for centinual improvement thraugh efferts to enhanes controls, angoing employee training and development and other measures.

B. Risk Management Structure

We have o well-defined risk I policy fi ek for risk identification, assessment and contral 1o ¢ffectively manage risks assocized with the vasious business activitics. The risk
Funclion is monitored primarily by the business risk group. The Bdelweiss Group has also established a Global Risk Committee that is responsible for managing the risk arising out of
various business activitics ata central level.

Our risk management policy ensures thal the margin requirements are conservalive to be able o wilhslamd market volatility and scerarios ol sharply declining prices, As a result, we lollow
conservative lending norms. The Edehweiss Group ceniralises the risk monitoring systen:s to monitor our client’s credit exposure wlich is i addition 10 the monitoring undertaken by the
Tespective businesses,

The Company's board of dircetors has overall responsibility for 1he cstablishment and oversight of the Company’s risk management framework. The board has established the Risk

Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and moenitoring the Company's risk cnanagement policies. The Commiittec holds reputar meatings and report o board on its
activities.

The audit committee oversees haw management moniters compliance with the Company®s risk mansgement policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk managenment
framework in relalion fo the risks faced by the Company. The audil conmitice is assisied in ils oversight role by intereal audit, uteral audit undertakes both regular and ad hoe reviews of
risk mamagement controls and procedures, the results of which are reported ta the audit commiteee,

C. Risk mitigation and risk cnlture

The Company's business processes ensure complete independence of functions and a segregation of responsibitities. Credit appraizal & credit control processes, centralised operations unit,
independent audit unit for checking compliance with the prescribed policies and approving loans at (ransaction level as weil as our risk management processes and policics allow fayers of
multiple checks and verifications, Our key business processes are regulatly monitored by e Ticad of our business or operations, Our loan approval and administration procedures, collection
and enf P I are designed to minimise definquencics and maximise recoverjas,

Atall levels of the Company's operatiens, specifically tailored risk reports are prepared and distributed in order fo ensurc that al! business divisions have access 1o exiensive, necessary and
up-to-dats information.

It is the Company's policy that 3 monthly bricfing is given to the Board of Tirectors and all other relevam members of the Campany in the utilisation of market limits, proprictary
investments and liquidity, plus any other risk developments.

Itis the Company’s policy to ensune that a robust risk awareness is embedded in its organisational risk cultore. Employees are expected to toke ownership amd be accountuble fer the risks the
Company is cxpesed 1. The Company’s continueus trairing and development emphasises that employacs are made aware of the Company's rigk appetite and they arc supported in their rofes

and responsibilitics 1o menitor and keep their exposure to risk within the Company's risk appetite limits. Compliance breaches and internal audit findings are imporant elements of
employees” annuai ratings and remuneration reviews,

D. Types of Risks

The Company's risks are gencrally eategorized in the following risk types:

Notes |Risks Avrising from Measurement, monitoring and management of risk
1{Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial Joss if 2 Atises principally from financing, Measured as the amount that could be lost if a customer or
customer or counterparty fails to meet an dealing in Corporate Bonds, counterparty fails to make repayments;
obligation under a contract, Investments in Mutual Fund, Equity, but
alse from certain other products such as [Monitored using various internal risk management measurcs and
guarantees and derivatives within limits approved by individuals within a framework of

delepated authorities; and

Managed through 2 robust risk centrol framewerk, which
outlines elear and consistent policies, principles and guidance for
risk managers.

2|Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that we do not have Liguidity risk arises from mismatches in{Measured using a range of metrics, including Asset Liability
sufficient financial the timing of cash flows. mismatch, Debt Equity Ratio

resources to meet our obligations

as they fall duc or that we can onby do so atan  jArises when illiquid asset positions Regular monitoring of funding levels to cnsure to mect the
cxcessive cost, cannot be funded at the expected terms  {requirement for Business and maturity of our liabilitics.

and when required,
Muintair diverse suurees s fumeting amd Hqutd mssets to fasiktae
flexibility in meeting our liquidity requirements of the Company.

3[Market risk

Market risk is the risk that Exposure to market risk is Measured using sensitivities, detailed picture of potential gains
movements in market factors,such separated into two portfolios: trading  jand losses for a range of market movements and scenarios,

as Interest rates, equity prices and Index prices, |and non-trading.

wiil reduce our income or the value of our Monitored using measures, including the sensitivity of net
portfolios inferest income.

Managed using risk limits approved by the risk management
commitice.
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48. Risk Management

48.D.1 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if 3 customer or counlerparty to a financial instrument fails ta meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from
the Company's Trade receivables and Loans, The Company has adopicd a policy of deating with ereditworthy counterparties and abtains sufficient collateral, where approprialc, as
a means of mitigating the risk of financiat loss from defaulis. In case the loans are 1o be restructured, similar eredit assossment process is followed by the Company,

The Company’s exposur to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of cach customer. Hawever, management also considers the factors that may
influence the credit risk of its customer hase, including the default risk of the industry and county in which custumers operzle.

The Company manages and controls credit rigk by setting limits on the amount of Tisk it is wilfing to aceept for individua] counterparties/Graups (Single Borrowing Limit/Group
Borrowing Limit) and for industry cencentrations, and by moritoring exposures in selation to such limis,

Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on its credit worthiness and historical dealings with the Company and market intelligence. Ouistanding customer receivables are
regularly menitored.The credit quality review process aims to allow the Company to assess the potential loss as a result of the risks to which it is expesed and take corrective
actiens.

Derivative financial Instruments:

Credit risk arising from derivative financial instruments is, at any time, limited to those with positive fair values, as recorded on the balance sheet, With gross-scttled derivatives,
the Company is also exposed to a scttlement risk, being the risk that the Company honours its obligation, but the counterparty fails to deliver the counter value.

impairment Assesment:

The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment Joss. The expected credit Toss allowance is computed based on u provision matrix which takes
into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking infornsasion.

The expected credit Joss is a product of exposure st default, probability of defaull and loss given defzult. The Company has devised an intemal model to evaluate the probability
of default and loss given default based on the parameters set out in Ind AS. Accordingly, the leans are classified into various stages as follows:

Internal rating prade Internal grading description Stages
Performing
High grade 0 dpd and 1 10 30 dpd Stage 1
Standard grade 3110 90 dpd Stage 2
Non-performing
Individually impaired 90+ dpd Stage 3

Credit loss is the difference between all contractual crsh flows that arc duc 1o an entity in accordance with the contract and sl the cash flows that the entity expects to receive
{i.c., alt cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. Expected Credit Loss (ECL) cemputation: is not driven by any single incthedology, however methodology and approach
used must reflect the following:

1) An unbiased and probability weighted amount that evaluates a range of possible outcomes

2) Reasonable and supportzble information ikal is available withoul undue cost and effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecas(s of future
economic conditiens;

3) Time value of money

While the time value of maney element is currently being factored into ECL meastirement while discoumting eash flows by the Effective Interest Rate (EIR), the abjective of
developing a macreeconomic mode] using exogenous mecroeconomic variables {MEVs) is to address the first twa requirements, This has been achieved by using the model
output to adjust the PD risk component in arder to make it forward Jooking and probability-weighted.

Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

Company considers a financial instruntent defaulled, classified as Stage 3 {credit-impaired) for ECL calculstions, in all eases when the boreower becomes 90 days past due.
Classification of assets form stage 1 to stage 2 has been carvied out based on SICR criterlon. Accounts which are mare than 30 days past due have been identified as accounts
where significant increase in credit risk has been observed, These accounts have been classified as Stmge 2 assets. When such events oceur, the Company carefully considers
whether the event should resilt in treating the customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL caleulations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate.

Prohabitity of Defanit

Probability of default (PD} is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given sime horizen, PD cstimation precess is done based on historical internal data available with the
Company. Whilc arriving at the PD, the Company also casures that the factors that afficts the macro economic trends are considered 1o a reasonable extent, wherever necessary,
Company caleulates the 12 month PD by taking inlo account the past historical trends of the Loans/portiolio and its credit performance. In case of assets where there is a
significant increase in credit risk / credit impaired assets, lifetime PD has been applicd.

Loss Given Default {(E.GD)

The LGB represents expected losses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account, among other attributes, the mitigating cffect of collatera? value at the time it is
eagrerted v b reatised and thi timfe valo of Kodey. (he Loss Given Defzult (LD has been computed with workout methodology. Workout LGD is widely considered to be the
most flexible, transparent and logical appreach to build an LGD model. Along wilh acival recoverics, value of the underlying collateral has been [actored i 1o estimale future
vecoverics in LGD computation. Workout LG computation involves the actual recoveries as well as future recoveries (as a part of the workout process) on a particular facitity,
as a pereentage of balance outstanding at the time of Defanlt/Restructuring. The assessment of workout LGD was then performed. Principal cwistanding for cach lean was
assessed, which went inte the denominator of the LGD caleulation, LGD computation has been done for cach scgment and sub-segment separately.
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48,
48.D.1

48.D.2

Risk Management (continued)
Credif Risk {continued)

Exposure at Defaylt (FAD)

The amount which the borrower will owe to the portfolic at the time of default is defined as Exposurc at Befault (EADY. White the drawn credit line reflects the explicit exposure
for the Company, there might be variable exposure that may increase the TAD, These exposures are of the nature where the Company provides future cornmitments, in addition
to the current credit. Therefore, the exposure will contain both an and off balance sheet valses, The value of cxposure is given by the following formula:

EAD = Drawn Credit Line + Credit Conversion Factor * Undrawn Credit Line
Where,
Drawn Credit Line = Current outstanding amount
Credit Conversion Factor (CCF) = Expected future drawdawn as a proportion of undrawn amount

Undrawn Credit Line = Difference between the total amount which the Company has committed and the drawn credit line While the drawn exposure and limits for the customer
are available, the modeliing of CCF is sequircd for computing the EAD

Forward looking adjustments

A measure of ECL i5 an unbiased probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes and using reasonable and suppertzble information
that is availabie without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future econontic conditions.”

To fulfil the above requirement Company has incorporated forward looking information into its measurement of ECL. The objective of developing a macroeconomic model using
CXOEEnOus macroceenomic variables (MEVs) is to address the requirements of unbiased, probability weighted outcomes while taking into aceount current conditions as well as
future economic conditions. This will be achieved by using the mode! cutpat 1o adjust she PD risk companenl in order to make il forward fooking and probability-weighted.

Exogenous macrocconomic parameters were used as independent (X) variables to predict the dependent (Y) variable, Keeping in mind Ind AS reguirements arourd obtaining
reliable and supporiable information. without incurring undue cost or effort. based on adviee of risk commiltee membars and economic experts and consideration of a variety of
external actual and forecast information, the Company formulates base case view of the future direction of relevant economic variable as well as a representative range of other
possibic forecast scenario, This process invelves developing two or more additional economic scenarios and considering the relative probabilities of cach outcome,

Data sourcing

The Company is expected to obtain reasonable and supportable information that is available without urdue cost or effort. Keeping in mind the above requirement macroeconomic
information was aggregated from Economic Intelligence Unit (EIL), Bloomberg, World Bank, RBI dztabase. The EIU data has a database of around 150 macroeconomic
varizbles as well as their forecasted values, Beyond 2022 macro-cconomic variables are forecasted by mean reverting the values to their long term average. External information
ircludes economic data and forecasts published by gevernmental bodies and monetary autherities in the country, supranational organisations such as the OECD and the IMF, and
selected private sector and academic forecasters.

Brohabhility weighted scenario creations:

Te incorporate macrocconomic impact inte probability-weighted, each scenario has an associated prohability. in order to ensure consistency across macracconomic models, these
probabilities were calculated at an overall level for both Retail and Non-Retail porsfolios, keeping in mind that though the impact of a scenario across different portfolios may
differ based an endegenous factors, the probability of a scenario unfolding is purcly cxegenous, and henee should not vary,

Thae Company has ideatified and documented key drivers of credit risk and eredit losses for each pertfolio of financial instruments and using n analysis of historical data, has
estimated relationship between marco-econamic variables and eredit risk and credit [nsses.

Predicted relationship between the key indicators and default and Joss rates on various portfolios of financial asscss have been developed based on anadysing historical data aver
the past 5 years.

Risk Concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterpastics are engaged i similar business aclivities, or activities in the same geopraphical region, or have similar economic features
that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, palitical or other conditions, Concentgations indicate the relative
sensitivity of the Company's perfonnance 1o developments affecting a particular indusiry or geographical location.

In order to aveid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company's policies and procedures include specific guidelines 1o focus on maintzining a diversified portfolio. 1dentified
cencentrations of eredit risks are controlled and managed accordingly.

The following table shows the risk concentration by industry for the components of the batance sheet
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48. Risk Management feortinued)
Credit Risk (continned)
48.D.2 Industry analysis - Risk concentration as at March 31, 2021
Particulars Financlal Services State & Central Agricoiture Induséry Real Estate  Service Sector  Hetail Loans Others Total
Guovernment
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,200.58 - - - - - - - £.200.58
Trade receivables - - - - - - - 52.95 52.95
Loans 8,435.68 - - - - 10.05 - - B.445.73
Investments 7,685.23 n - - - 12,354.98 - - 20,040.21
Other financial assets 7.02 - - . - 0.04 - 40.96 48.02
Total Assets 17,328.51 - - - - 12,365.07 - 9351 2978749
Industry analysis - Risk concentration as at March 31, 2020
Particulars 1;:::;:1 S'é::\:::‘:;?l Agriculture Industry Real Estale SS?:?:: Retail Loans  Others Total
Financiel Assets
Cash and cash cquivalents £.416.56 - . - - - - - 1,416.56
Derivative financial instruments £,563.67 - - - - - - - 1,563.67
Seeurities held for frading 4,923.39 - - - - “ - 147.19 5,070.58
Trade receivables - - - - - - - 2,60 2.60
Other receivables 2.78 - - - - - - - 278
Loans 2,225.12 - 660.73 - - 53,14232 - 8,028.17
Investments 3,866.15 “ - - 2.677.59 1,2¢:0.00 - 2,583.71 10,327.45
Other financial assets 535.01 - - - - 0.87 - - 535.88
Total Assets 14,532.68 - - 6010.73 2,677.5%9 1,200.87 5.14232 2,733.50 _ 26,947.69
43.D.3  Collateral and ather credit enhancetnents
The amount and type of collateral required o I on an t of the eredit risk of the counterparty. Guidelines are in place covering the acceptability and valuation of each type of

collateral. The main types of collateral obtained are charges over real estate prapertics, inventory, trade receivables, mosgages over residential properties, Securitics. Management menstors the
matket value of collateral and will reguest additional ¢ollateral in accordance with the underlying agreement,

The tables below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset along with details on collaterals held against exposure.

Maximm exposure to eredit risk

Asat Asat .
March31, 2021 Magch 31, 2020 "TIneIPal tpe af callateral

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,200.58 1,416.56
Derivative financial insituments - 1,563.67
Securities held for trading - 5070.58 The Company invest in high rated Corporate Bonds and liguid Equity Shares
Trade receivables 52.95 2,66 These are receivables mainly rom Clearing houses, Group, Carrying minimum risk.
Gther reccivables - 2,78
Loans:

1) Corperate Credil 8,445.73 3,233.73  March 31, 2021- Loan is unsecured; March 31, 2020- Equity Shares, Mutual Fund units, Land, Propeny,

Project /Future Receivable elc.

1i) Retail Credir - 4.794.44  March 33, 2021- Loan is unsecured; March 31, 2026- Equity shares and Mutual fund units, Bonds, ce.
Investmenis 20,040.21 10,327.45
Other financial asscls 48.02 535.88
Totzl Financial Assets (A) 29.787.49 26,947.69
Eoan commitments - 1,639,89  Equity Shares, Mutual Fund units, Land, Properly, Project Receivable etc
Tolal Commitments (B) - 1,630.89
Total (A+1) 29.187.49 28,587.58
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48. Risk Management (confinued)
48.D.3 Collateral and other credit enhancements (continued)

Financial assets that are stage 3 and related collateral held in erder to mitigate potential losses are given below:

Maximum exposure to credit risk as at March 31, 2021- Nil

Maximum exposure to credit risk as at March 31, 2620

Carrying amount

Fair val
Associated ECL.  Carrying amount air value of

before ECL collateral
a) Loans:
Corporate Credit * 756.10 [86.53 569.57 85591
Retail Credit 52.84 1.86 50.97 89.75
Total Financial Assets 808.94 188.32 620.54 945.66

* Secured by way of a pari pasu charge over collateral
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48. Risk Management (Continued)
48.E Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter difficuity in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilitics that are settled by delivering cash or anather financial
asset. Liquidity risk ariscs beeause of the possibility that the Company might be unable to meet its payment abligations when they fafl duc as a result of mismatches in the timing of the cash
flows under both normal and siress circumstances.

Company has a Liquidity Contingency Policy in place to ensure vatious liquidity parameters are defincd and tracked regutasly. Liquidity Management Team is provided with update on
expected Huidity shortfalls in Normal as well as Stress scenario,

To manage the stressed circumstances the Company has ensured mointenance of a Liquidity Cushion in the form of Investments in Government Securities, Mutual Funds and Quoted Eguity
Shares. These assets carry minimal credit risk and can be liquidated in a very short period of time. A Houidity cushion amounting te 5-9% of the borrowings is sought to be maintained through
such assets, These would be to take care of immediate obligations while continuing te honour our commitments as 1 going concern. There are available lines of credil from banks which are
drawuble on notice which further augment the available sources of funds. Funding is raised through diversified sources inchiding Banks, Private issue of Debt, Sub Debt ele to maintain a

healthy mix.
Liquidity Cushion:
As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Liquidity cushion
Debt Securities - 4,910.66
Mutual Fund Investments - -
Quoted Equity Instruments - 159.92
Total Liquidity cushion - 5,070.58

Financing Arrangment
‘The Company has no undrawn borrowing facilities as at March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020,

As at March 31, 2021 - Analysis of contractual mataorities of financial assets and Habilities
Upto 3 3ta 6 6 Monthsto 1yearto5 Morethan5s

On Demand Months Months 1 year years years Total

Financial Assets
(2) Cash and cash cquivalents 1,200.58 - - - - - 1,200.58
{b) Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - -
{c) Securities held for trading - - - - - - -
{d) Reccivables

(i) Trade receivables - 52.95 - - - - 52.95
{e) Loans - 7.022.04 1,425.21 - - - 8,447.25
(f) Investments - - - 2,357.70 3,663.96 14,018.55 20,040.21
(g) Other financial assets - 48.02 - - - . 48.02
Total undiscounted financial assets 1,200.58 7,123.01 1,425.21 2.357.70 3,663.96 14,618.,55 29,782.01
Financial Liabilities
(a) Derivative financial instruments - - - - - - -
(b} Trade payables - 40.89 - - - - 40.89
(c) Debt securities - - 1,668.01 2,824.31 4,020.47 2,§53.02 10,665.81
(d} Borrowings (other than debt securities) - 7,136.05 - - - - 7,136.05
(e) Subordinated Liabilities - - 16.50 - 216.05 - 232,55
(f) Other financial liabilities - 16.22 - - - - 16.22
Total undiscounted financial liahilities - 7,193.16 1,684.51 2,824.31 4,236.52 2,153.02 18,091.52

Total net financial assets / (liabilities) 1,200.58 {70.15) (259.30) (466.61) {572.56) 11,865.53 11,697.49




Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the financia] statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Currency: Endian rupecs in million)

48, Risk Management (Continued)
48.E Liquidity Risk (Continued)

As at March 31, 2020 - Analysis of contractual maturities of financial assets and liabilities

Upto 3 3106 6Monthste 1yearte5 DMorethan5
On Demand Months Months 1 year years years Total

Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 1,416.56 - “ - - - 1,416.56
{b) Derivative financial instruments - 1,563.67 - - - - 1,563.67
{c) Sceuritics held for trading - 159.92 276.71 4,633.95 - - 5,070.58
(d) Receivables

(i} Trade receivables - 2.60 - - - - 2.60

(ii) Other receivables - 278 - - - - 2.78
(e) Loans 1,015.53 2,478.59 313.45 1,104.86 4,388.13 - 9,360.61
(f) Invesiments - - - 447 61 2,282.65 7.597.19 10,327.45
(g) Other financial asscts - 535.88 - - - - 535.88
Total undiscounted financiaj assets 2,432.09 4,743.44 590.16 6,186.42 6,670.83 7,597.19 28,220.13
Financial Liabilities
(2) Derivative financial instruments - 236.46 - - - - 236.46
(b) Trade payables - 228.51 - - - - 228.5%
(¢) Debt securities - 910.98 2,576.59 159.91 7.313.74 2,198.95 13,160.17
{d) Borrowings (other than debt securities) 1,629.75 30.68 30.08 58.19 135.24 - 1,883.94
(2) Subordinated Liabilities . - 16.55 - 66.05 166.50 249,10
(f) Other financial liabilities - 0.48 - - - - 0.48
Total nndiscounted financial Habilities 1,629.75 1,407.11 2,623.22 218.10 7,515.03 2,365.45 15,758.66

Total net financial assets / (liabilities) 802,34 3,336.33 (2,033.06) 5,968.32 {844.20) 5,231.74 12,461.47
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48. Risk Management (Continued)
48.E Liquidity Risk (Continued)

Contractuzl expiry of commitments

As at March 31, 2021 there are no estimated amount of contracts capital account, undrawn committed credit lines and unealled commitments on

investments in ATF/ Venture Fund.
The table below shows the contractual expiry by maturity of the Company's commitments,

As at March 31, 2020

Particulars On Demand Less than 3 3 to 12 months 1to 5 years Over 5 Years Total
months i
Estimated amount of contracts capital account - - - - - -
Undrawn committed credit kines - - £.639.89 - - 1,639.89
Uncalled commitments on investments in AIF/ Venture Fund - - 3,345.13 - - 3,345.13
- - 4,985.02 - - 4,985.02
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Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{Currency: Indian rapecs in million)

48, Risk Management

48.F Market Risk {continued)

Interest Rate Risk

The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios arc exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the fisture cash flows or fair values of financial
instruments because of a change in market interest rates. Interest rate tisk is managed principally through monitoring interest Tate gaps and by having pre-
approved dimits for repricing bands.

ALCO is the monitoring bady for compliance with these limits, ALCO reviews the interest rate gap statement and the mix of fleating and fixed raic
assets and liabilities. Balance Sheet Management Unit is in-charge for day to day management of interest rate risk.

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of financial instruments. The Board
has established limits on the non—trading interest rate gaps for stipulated periods. The Company's policy is to menitor positions on a daily basis and
hedging strategies are used to cnsure positions are maintained within the established limits.

The following table demanstrates the sensitivily to a reasonably possible change in inlerest rates (all other variables being constant} of the Company’s
statement of profitand loss arxd cquity. The sensitivity of the statement of profit and loss is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the profit
or loss for a year, based on the floating rate nen—trading financial assets and financial liabititics held at March 31, 2021 and at March 31, 2020

Interest rate sensitivity

As at March 31, 2021

Increase in Scensitivity of  Sensifivityof Decreasein  Sensilivity of  Sensitivity

basis peints Profit Equity basis points Profit of Equity
Bank borrowings 25 - - 5 - -
Corporate debt securities 25 {15.24) - 25 15.24 -
As at March 31, 2020

Increase in Sensitivity of  Scositivity of  Decreasein  Sensitivity of  Sensitivity

basis points Profit Equity basis points Profit of Equity
Bank borrowings 25 {0.56) . 25 0.56 -
Corporate debt securities 25 ([2.28) - 25 12,28 -

Price Risk

The Company’s cxposure to sceuritics price risk arises from investments held in Equity Shares classified in the balance sheet at fair value through profit
or Ioss, To manage its price risk arising from such investments, the Company diversifies its portfolio. Further thesc arc all debt base sccuritics for which
the exposure is primarily on account of interest rate risk. Quotes (NAV) of these investments are available from the mutual fund houses.

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the level of individual
investment in equity share prices.

As at March 31, 2021

Increase in Sensitivity of  Sensitivity of  Deerease in Scnsitivity of  Seasitivity

price (%) Profit Equity price (%a) Profit of Equity
Derivative instruments 5 - - 5 - "
Equity instruments 5 - - 3 - .
As at March 31, 2020

Tnerease in Sensitivity of  Sensitivity of Decrease in Sensitivity of  Sensitivity

price (%) Profit Equity price (%) Profit of Equity
Berivative instraments 5 5.18 5 (5.58)
Equity instramenis 5 8.00 - s (8.00) -

48.G Prepayment Risk
Prepayment risk is the risk that the Company will incur a financial loss because its customers and counterpartics repay or request repayment eardier or
later than expected, such as fixed zate Loans/borrowings in the falling interest rate scenario.
If 5% of total repayable financial instruments were o prepay at the beginning of the year following the reported period, with all other variables hekd
censtant, the profit before fax for the year would be reduced by Rs, Nil {March 31, 2020 - Rs. 14.68 million)
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021
{Currency: Indian rupees in million)

49. Note On account of Merger

The Board of Dircctors of the Company at their meeting held on February 12, 2020 had approved the Scheme of Merger of
Edelweiss Finvest Limited (EFL’) (Formerly known as Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited), the Transferor company with Edel
Finance Company Limited, the Transferee Company with effect from April 01, 2019 or such other date as may be approved
by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT}), Bench at Mumbai as the Appointed Date. This is under sections
230 to 232 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, {the ‘Act’) and the rules framed thereunder
providing for the merger by absorption. The Appointed Date shatl be the effective date and the Scheme shall be deemed to be
effective from the Appointed Date. The aforesaid Scheme of Merger by Absorption was filed with the Hon’ble National
Company Law Tribunal, Bench at Mumbai, The Registrar of Companies and the Office of Official Liguidator, Mumbai and
The Regional Director, Western Region, Mumbai. The Scheme was sanctioned by Hon’ble NCLT on February 22, 2021 and
the certified true copy of the order was issued by NCLT on March 31, 2021, The Company has filed the notice of order with
Ministry of Corporate Affairs to give effect to the scheme on April 09, 2021,

The merger was accounted under the “pooling of interest” method prescribed under Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations, as
prescribed by the Scheme. Accordingly, all the asscts, Habilities and other reserves of the Transferor Company were
aggregated with those of the Transferec Company at their respective book values from the earliest period presented. On April
1, 2019, in terms of the Scheme of Arrangement, 4,33,23,638 equity share of Rs. 100 each (Number of Shares 4,33,23,638) of
the Transferee Company has been allotied to the shareholders of Edefweiss Finvest Limited (the Transferor Company) for 130
equity shares of the Transferee Company of Rs. 100 each for every 100 equity share of the Transferor Company of Rs. 10
cach held by them in the share capital of Edelweiss Finvest Limited (the Transferor Company), afler cancellation of
3,33,25,875 shares of the Transferor Company. These shares were considered for the purpose of caleulation of carnings per
share appropriately. The net effect of Rs. 3,999.11 Million being the difference between the amount recorded as share capital
and the amount of the share capital of Transferor Company has been credited in Capital Reserve account.

Particulars As at April 1, 2019
(i.e. March 31, 2019)
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4.670.11
Derivative financial instruments 706.85
Securities held for trading 1,142.86
Trade receivables 21.34
Other receivables 26.46
Loans 24,560.55
Investments £,862.01
Other financial assets 668.12
Non-financial assets
Current tax assels (net} 147.32
Deferred tax assets (net) 114.22
Property, Plant and Equipment 1.35
Other Intangible asscts 6.35
Other non- financiat assets 101.56
TOTAL ASSETS {A) 34,029.10
Financial Habilities
Derivative financial instruments 422.49
Trade payables 323.89
Drebt securities 2227576
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 337.18
Subordinated liabilities 161,17
Other financial fiabilities 22.74
Non-financial liabilities
Current {ax liabilities (net) 263.93
Provisions 14.90
Other non-financial liabilities 42.07
TOTAL LIABILITIES (B) 23,864.13
RESERVES AND SURPLUS () 9,831.71
NET ASSETS TAKEN OVER (A-B-C) (D) 333.26
Issue of shares to the shareholders of Transferor Company (E) 4,332.37
CQ&?F&ESERVE ON MERGER (D-E) {3,999.11)
\! )
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50

51

52

Regulatory disclosure of Core Investment Company (CIC)
CORE INVESTMENT COMPANY (“CIC™}

As at As at

March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Particulars {refer note 2)
a} Investments & loans to group companics as a prapoertion of Net Asscts (%) 99.61% 23.56%
b} Investments in equity shares and compulsorily convertible instruments of group 48.76% 19.68%
companies as a praportion of Net Assets {34} (refer nete 1}
¢} Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) [Adjusted Net worth / Risk Weighted Asscts] 42.20% 44.34%
d) Leverage Ratio (Times) [Outside liabilities / Adjusled Networth) 1.49 1,38
Note:

1. Company received the certificd true copy of the merger order on March 31, 2021, and hence certain loans and investments in the
balance sheet of EFL were re-organized as they canmot be part of EFCL, being a CIC. Due to bank holidays arourd end of March and
beginning of April, certain foan repayments were banked only ot April 5, 2021, As a result, as at March 31, 2021, the ratio of cquity
invesiments in group companies to ils net assets based on merged balance sheet stood at 48,76%. The ratio post giving effect to these
repayments on Aprit 5, 2021 steod at 64.57% which is higher thar the minimum required by RBI (CIC) Directions. Consequent to
above, the notice of the order was filed with Ministry of Corporate Affairs on Aprif 9, 2021 to give effect to the seheme of merger.

2. Company reccived the centificd true copy of the merger arder on March 31, 2021, and above ratios are calculated based on merged
balance sheet of March 31, 2020,

As per signed standalone financials of Edel Finanee Company Limited as at March 31, 2020, Company complicd with all regulatory
ratios as mentioned,

2) Investments & loans to group companies as a proportion of Net Assets (%) - 99.83%

b) Investments in equity shares and compulsorily cenverlible insiruments of group companics as a prepontion of Net Assets (%4) - 99.83%
c) Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) - 31.87%

d) Leverage Ratio (Times) -2.14

Exposure to real estate sector

Asat As at
Particulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
a) Dircet Exposures
(i) Residential Morigages - Lending fully secured by Mosrigages on residential property
that is or will be occupied by the borrower or that is rented property that is or wilt be
accupicd by the borrower or that is rented - of which housing loans eligivle for inclusion
in priorily sector advances are rendered - -

(i} Commerciai Real Estate- Lending seeurcd by mortgages on commercial real estate
(office buildings, retail space, multi purpose cammercial premises, multi family residential
buildings,nulti tenanted commercial premises, industrial or warehouse space, hotels, land
acquisition, development and construction, ete.). Exposure would also include non fund
based (NFB) limit - -

(iit) Investments in Mortgage Backed Sceuritics (MBS) and other securitised cxposures —

a. Residential _ _
b. Commercial Real Estate - -

b) Indirect Exposures
Funi based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing
Finance Companies (HFCs), 1,000,800 1,006.00

Total exposure to Real Estate Sector 1,000.00 1.000.00

Disclosure of details as required by RBI/DNBR/2016-17/39 i.e. Master Direction - Core Investment Companics (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016 dated August 25, 2016 (Updated as on November 22, 2019)

Liabilities Side:
Particulars Amount OQutstanding as at Amount Overdue as at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

1) Loans and aedlvances availed by the
CIC inclusive of interest acerued
thereon but not paid
a) Debentures: (other than those fulling
within the meaning of Public deposits)
(i) Secured 833480 10,138.7% - -
(it} Unsecured 2,330,92 302041 - -
b} Deferred Credits - .
¢) Term Loans - 219.36 - -
d} Inter-corporate loans and borrewing 7,136.05 1,629.75 - -
¢) Commereial Paper v - - -
f) Other loans (Bank overdraft) - -
£) Other loans (Subordinated liabilities) 161.12 168.09 - - -

/—-.,_
5 UBN
. 2\

(o)




Edel Finanee Company Limited

Notes te the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021

(Curreney: Indian rupess in million}

52

Repulatory disclosure of Core Investment Company {CIC)

Disclosure of details as required by RBI/DNBR/2016-17/39 i.c. Master Direction - Core Investment Companies {Reserve Bank)

Directions, 2016 dated August 25, 2016 (Updated as on November 22, 2019) (continued)

Asscets Side:

Particulars

Amount Quistanding as at

March 3], 2021

March 31, 2020

2) Break up of Loans and Advanees including bills reccivables (other than those
included in (4) below)

a) Secured

b) Unsecurad

3) Break up of Leascd Assets and stock on hire and other assets
counting towards AFC activities
i) Lease assets including lease rentats under sundry deblors:
() Financiz| Lease
(b) Operating Lease
ii) Stock on hire includéing hire charges under sundry debtors
(a) Asscts on hire
{b) Repossessed asscts
iif) Other leans counting towards Asset Financing Company activitics
(a} Loans where asscts have been repossessed
(b) Lozns other than {a) above

4) Break up of Investments
Current Investments;
1. Quoled:
{1} Shares:

(a) Equity

(b) Preference
(ii) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds
(iv) Government Sccurities
(v) Others

2. Unquoted:
{i) Sharcs:

(a) Equity

(b} Preference
{i) Debentures and Bonds
(iii) Units of Mutual Funds
{iv) Government Securitics
(v} Oihers

Long term Investments;
1. Quoted:

(i) Shases:

{a) Equity

{b} Preference
(ii} Debentures and Bonds
(1ii) Units of Mutual Funds
(iv} Government Securitics
{v) Others

2. Unquoted;
() Shares:
{a) Equity (refer note 1)
(b) Preference
{i1) Debentures and Bonds
(iif} Units of Mutual Funds
{iv) Government Sccurities

{v} Others (refer note 2}

844573

2,357,770

13,945.12

3,737.39

6,155.66
1,872.51

1,804.24
484.60
52.50

4,986.11

Notes;

1. Unquoted cquity include investment in equity, compulsory convertible debentures and compulsery convertible preference shares

2. Others include invesiments in venture capital fund, AIF and ARC sceurity receipts
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Repgulatory disclosure of Core Investment Company (CIC)

52 Disclosure of defails 85 regoired by REIVDNBR/2016-17/39 {.e. Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)

Directions, 2016 dated August 25, 2016 (Updated as on November 22, 2019) {continued)

5) Borrower group-wise classification of asscts financed as in (2) and (3) above :

Far 2020-21
Category Amount net of previsions
Secured Unsccured Total
1. Related party
a) Subsidiarics - 503848 5,038.48
b} Companies in the same group - 2,258.69 2,258.69
2, Other than related partics 8,134.89 2,330.92 10,665.81
Tota} 8,334,589 9.628.09 17,962.98
For 2019-20
Category Amount net of provisions
Secured Unsecured Total
1. Related party
a} Subsidiaries - - -
b) Companies in the same group - 1,790.84 1,790.84
2. Other than related partics 10,358.12 3.021.41 13,379.53
Total 10,358.12 4,812.25 15,170.37
6) Investor group-wise classification of all investments {current and long-term)
Category As at Asat
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Market Vatae / Market Value /
Breakup Value or Book Value Breakup Value or Book Value
Fair Value or NAY | (Net of Provigions) | Fair Value er NAV | {Net of Provisions)
1. Related party
a} Subsidiarics 12,354.98 12.354.98 - -
b) Companies in the same group 7,685.23 7.685.23 1.289.49 7.289.49
2. Other than related partics - - 3,037.96 3.037.96
Total 20,840.21 20,040.21 10,327.45 10,327.45

6.1) Investment in other CICs- Total amount representing any direct or indirect capital contribution made by ane CIC in

another CIC is Nil

6.2) Investments and movement in provision

Asat As at
Farticulars March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
1. ¥alue of Investments®
i) Gross Value of Investnents
a) In Indin 20,040.21 10,693.80
b) Qutside India - -
it) Provisions for Depreciation
a) [n India - 366.35
b) Outside India - -
iii) Net Value of Investments
1) In India 20,040.21 10,327.45
b) Outside India - N
2, Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on investments
i} Opening balance 366.35 (358.97)
i1} Add : Provisions made during the year - 725.32
iii} Less 1 Write-off / write-back of excess srovisions during the year (366.35) -
iv) Closing balance - 366.35

*1t includes only investments (Refer Note §3C)
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Regulatory disclosure of Core Investment Company (CIC)
7) Other Information

Particulars Amount Qutsianding as at
Mareh 31, 2021 March 31, 2020

(i) Gross Non-Performing Assefs
(a) Related Parties - -
(b} Other than Related Parties - 808,94

(i) Net Non-Performing Assets

(a) Related Partics - -
(b) Other than Related Partics - 620.55
{iii} Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt - -

53 Disclosure on liquidity risk

As required in terms of paragraph 3 of RBI Circular RBI2019-20/88 DOR.NBFC (PD} CC. No.102/03.10.001/2019-20 dated
November 4, 2019 on Liguidity Risk Management Framewark for Nan-Banking Financial Companics and Core Investment Companics.

L. Funding concentration based on significant counterparty (borrowings)

As at March 31, 2021

Number of significant counterparties® Amount % of Toial Deposits (% of Total
Linbilities
8 9,392.60 NA 52.01%
Total 9,392.60 - 52,01%
As at March 31, 2020
Number of significant counterpartics* Amount %o of Total Deposits |% of Total
Liabikiti
13 4,660.23 NA 24.36%,
Total 4,660.23 - 29.36%

* “Significant coumerparty” is defined as a single counterparty or group of comiecied or affifiated counterpartics accounting in
aggregate for more than 1% of the NBFC-NDSI's total liabilities.

2. Top 20 large deposits
The Company being a Syslemically Important Non-Deposil faking Non-Banking Financial Company registered with Reserve Bank of
India got cenverted into Core Investment Company (CIC) as NBFC-CIC-ND-SE, daes not accept public deposits.

3. Top 19 borrowings (amount in T millions and % of total borrowings)

As at March 31, 2021
Particulars Amount* % of Tatal
Borrowings**
Top 10 borrowers 9,705.60 54.03%
As at March 31, 2020
Particulars Amount* % of Total
Borrowings**|

Top 10 bomowers 4,207.23 27.73%
* Represents principal amount
** Total barrewings represents debt securities + borrewings (other than debt securities) + subordinated labilitics
4. Funding concentration based on significant instrument / product
As at March 31, 2021

Amount % of Total
Name of the instrument / product Liabilities
Debt securities 10,826.93 59.95%
Intra Group horrowings e 7,136.08 39.52%
As at March 31, 2020

Amount % of Total
Name¢ of the insirument / product Liabilitics
Debt securities 13,321.26 83.92%
Term loans 219.36 1.38%
Intra Group borrowings 1,629.75 10.27%
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5. Stock Ratios

As at As at
March 31, 2021 March 31, 2020
Commercial papers as a % of total public funds 0.00% $.00%
Comuneredal papers a5 a %o of total liabilities 0.00% 0.00%
Commercial papers 25 a %o of total assets 0.00%5 0.00%
Non-convertible debentures {original maturity of less than ane year) as a % of total publie funds 0.00%: LO0%
Non-convertible debentures {esiginal maturity of Iess than ane year) as a % of total liabilities 0.00% L00%
Non-canvertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of lotal assets 0,00% 4.00%
Other short term Habilitics * 7,136.05 1,629.75
Orther short-term liabititics, if any as a %5 of total public funds** 39.73% 19.74%
Other short-term liabilities, if any as a % ol wial liabililies*** 39.52% 16.27%
Orher shon-terin liabilities, if any as a %5 of total assets 23.46% 5.82%

* *Other shori-term lisbilitics™ refers ta the borrowing in shorl term in naturc.

** “Fotal public funds” refers to the aggregate of Debl sceuritics, Borrowing other than debt sceurities and Subordinated liabititics,

*** "Totai linbilitics ™ refers o total externat liabilities (i.c. excluding fotal equity),

6. Institutional set-up for liquidity risk management

The Asset-Liability gap is being menitered from time fo time to overcome the asset-Hability mismatches, interest risk exposure, cte, it
any. The Liquidity risk emanates from the possible mismatches duc to differences in maturity and repayment profile of asscts and
liabilities, The Company ensures that the credit and investment expasure are only with the group companies and are within the statutory
limits as prescribed by the Reserve Bauk of India from fime to time. The Company will continue to get support from the Holding
Company in the form of equity infusion and is necessary support %o repay its dues on timely basis.
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Disclosure pursuant to Reserve Bank of India notification DOR (NBFC).CC.PD.Na. 109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020 pertaining to Asset

Ciassification as per RBI Norms

As per the RBI circular RBI/2019-20/170 dated 13th March, 2020, where impairment allowance urder Ind AS 109 is fower than the provisioning required
under IRACT (including standard assct provisioning), NBFCs (CICs) shall appropriate the difference from their net profit or loss afler tax to a separate
‘lmpaimment Reserve’, Further, no withdrawals shall be permitted from this reserve without prior permission from the RBIL

As at March 31, 2021

Lass Allowances

Differcnee between

Asset Gross Carrying  [(Provisions) as Provisions Ind As 109
Asset Classification as per RBY classification as  |Amount as per  |required under  |Net Carrying |required as per |Provisions and
Norms per Ind AS 109 |Ind AS Ind AS 109 Amount IRACPF norms |IRACP norms
A B C=A-B D E=B-D
Performing Assets
Standard Stage 1 844725 1.52 844573 3379 {32.27)
As at March 31, 2020
Loss Allowances Difference between
Assct Gross Carrying  |{Provisions) as Provisions Tnd As 109
Asset Classification as per RBI classification as  [Amountas per  |required under [Net Carrying |required as per |Provisions and
Norms per Ind AS 109 |Ind AS Ind AS 109 Amount ERACP norms  |IRACP norms
A B C=A-B D E=B-D
Performing Asscts
Standard Stage-1 5.140.94 .57 5,140.37 2540 (24.83)
Stage-2 2,426,15 i58.90 2,261.25 9.70 149.20
Sub Tutal 1,567.09 159.47 1407.62 3510 124.37
Non Performing Assets (NPA)
Substandard Stage-3 80112 186.67 614.45 8011 106,56
Doubtful - up to 1 year Stage-3 296 - 2.96 0.59 (0.59)
1103 Years Stage-3 4.86 1.72 3.14 1.46 0.26
Mote than 3 years Stage-3 - . - - -
Sub total for Doubtful 7.82 172 6,10 2.05 (0.33)
Loss Stage-3 - - - N -
Subtotal for NPA 808.94 188.39 620.55 82.16 106.23
C. Other items
Other items such as goaraniees, loan Stage-1 - - - -
commitments, ¢te, which are in the
scope of Ind AS 109 but not covered
under current Income Recognition,
Asset Classification and Provisioning
{IRACP) norms -
Stage.2 - . - - -
Stage-3 - - - - -
Subtotal - - - - -
Total Stage-1 5,140.94 0.57 5,140.37 25.40 (24.83)
Stage-2 2,426.15 158.90 2,267.25 9.70 149.20
Stage-3 808.94 188.39 620,55 8214 106.23
Total 8,376.03 347.86 8,028.17 117.26 230.60
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Assct Liability Management -Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities

As at March 31, 2021
Particulars Lizbilities Assets

Borrowings from Market Inter group Securities held for

Banks borrowings boerrowings Advance Inivestments trading

1 day to 30/31 days (Onc month) - - 7.136.05 7.022.04 - -
Over One months to 2 maonths B - - - - -
Over 2 months up to 3 months - - - - - -
Over 3 months to 6 months - 1,684.51 - 1,425.21 - -
Over 6 months to | year - 2,824.31 . - 235770 -
Over | year lo 3 years - 4,070.02 - - 3,663.96 -
Over 3 years to 5 years - 166.50 . - n -
Qver 5 years - 2,153.02 - - 14,018.55 -
Tatal u 10.898.36 7,136.05 8.447.28 20,040.21 -
As at March 31, 2020
Particulars Liabilities Assets

Borrowings from Market nter group Securities held for

Banks borrowings borrowings Advance Envestments trading

1 day to 30/31 days (One momh) - - 1,629.75 1,015.53 - -
Over One menths to 2 months n 166.67 - - - 159,92
Over 2 months up to 3 months 25.00 744.31 - 2,218.20 - -
Qver 3 months ta 6 months 25.00 2,587.68 - 11068 - 276.71
Over 6 months to 1 year 50,00 159.%1 - 857.04 447.61 4,633.94
Over | year to 3 ycars £19.36 6,979.91 - 4,175.18 2,282.65 -
Qver 3 years ta 5 years - 333.83 - - - -
Qver 5 years - 2,348.95 - - 7,597.19 -
Total 219.36 13,321.26 1,629.75 8,376.03 10,327.45 5,070.57

Provisions and Contingencics:

Break up of ' Provisions and Contingeneies' shown uoder the head Expenditure in Profit and Eoss Account:

As at| As at
Particulars March 31, 20211 DMavrch 31, 2020
Provisions for depreciation on investment - -
Provisien towards non-performing asscis - 13543
Provision made towards Income tax (shown below profit
before tax)
Current tax “ 276.76
Deferred tax {29.59) (142,70)
Current tax relating to earlier years (212.90) (60.3%)
Impact of change in the rate on opening deferred tax - -
Other provision and contingencies:
Provision for standard assets 3.16 29622
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Misceltaneous
f) Registration obtained from other financial sector regulators: No tegistration has been obtained from other financial scctor regulators,

Fl) Penaltics imposed by RBI and other regulators: No penalties have been imposed by RBI or other regulators during the year. (Previous Year: NIL)

EHl) Ratings assigned by credit rating agencics and migration of ratings during 1he year:

As at 31 March 2021

Instrument cafegory CRISIL ICRA CARE Brickworks
i} Long Term Instruments
Rating AA- { Negative At/ Negative A+ [ Stable AA-  Stable
Amount 1£,950.00 6,120.00 2,000.00 3,000.00
if) Shot Ferm Instruments
Rating Al+ - - -
Amount 50,000.00 - - u
ifi) Market link debentures - Long term
PP- MLD AAr/[ PP-MLD [ICRA] PP- MLD A+ /
Rating Negalive A+ [ Negative Stnble -
Amount 31,993.80 2,669.90 1.691.10 -
iv) Market link debentures - Short term
Rating PP -MLD Al+r - - -
Amount 5,000.00 - - -
As at 31 March 2020
Instrument category CRISIL ICRA CARE Brickworks
i} Lang Term Enstruments
Rating AA-{ Stable AA-/ Negative AA-/Stble | AA S Negative
Amount 12,000.00 13,060.00 £,500.00 3,600.00
ii) Shert Ferm Instruments
Rating Al A+ - -
Amount 30,000.00 2,000.00 - -
jti) Market fink debentures « Long term
PP~ MLD AA-r/| PP-MLD [ICRA] PP- MLD AA Y/
Ratinyr Stable|  AA-/Negative] PP-MLD AA- Negative
Amount 26,000.00 10,073.90 5,875.20 3,000.00
iv) Market link debentures - Short term
PP-MLD
Rating PP -MLD Al+r [ICRAJAL+r - -
Amount 5,000,400 1,500.00 - -

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code an Social Security, 2020 which subsurncs the Provident Fund and the Gratuity Act and ruies there under. The
Ministry of Eabour and Employment has also released drafi rules thercunder on November 13, 2020 and has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are

under active consideration by the Ministry. The Company will evaluate the rules, assess the impact if any, and account for the same once the rules are natificd
and become effective,

The COVID-19 pandemic outbreak across the world including India has resulted in most countries announcing lockdowns and quarantine measares that have
sharply statled cconemic activities across the world. The Indian Government teo has impesed lockdewns starting from March 24, 2020, Subsequently, the
national lockdown was lifted by the povernment for certain activities in a phased manner owtside specificd containment zomes, but regional
lockdewns/restrictions continued to be implemented in areas with a significant number of COVID-I9 cases. The [ndian econony is impacted and would
continue to be impacted by this pandemic and the resultant leckdown, due to the contraction in industriak and scrvices output across smalt and large
businesscs. The impact of the COVID -19 pandemic , including the current “sccond wave™ on Company's results, including gainvloss on fair valse changes,
investment; remains uncenain and dependent on the current and further spread of COVID -19, steps taken by the governrent, RBT 2l wiirer segulators
mitigate the economic impact and also the time it takes for cconomic activities to resume and reach the normal levels. Further, the Company has assessed the
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on its liquidity and ability 10 repay its obligations as and when they are due. Management has considered varjous financial
suppert from banks and other fundraising apportunitics in determining the Company liquidity position over the next 12 months. Based on the foregoing and
necessary stress tests consideting various scenarios, management believes that the Company will be able to pay its obligations as and when these become due
in the foreseeable fiture. [n assessing the recoverability of deferred tax assels and investments, ie Company has considered internal and external sources of
information, including credit reponts, cconomic forecasts and industry reports up to the date of approval of these financiat statements. Since the situation
continue to evolve, its cffect on the operations of the Company may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial results, The
Company will continue te ¢losely meonitor material changes in markets and future cconomic conditions.
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In accordance with the instructions in RBI eircular number RBI/202E-22/17 dated April 7, 2021, all lending institutions shall refund / adjust interest on
interest’ to all betrowers including those who have availed working capital facilities during the moratorium period, imrespective of whether moratoriom had
been fully or partially availed or not availed. Pursuant {o these instructions, the Indian Banks' Association (IBA) in consultation with other industry participants
/ bodies published the methodology for calculation of the amount of such “interest on interest/compound interest/penal interest’. Accordingly the Company has

estimated Rs, 0.09 crore and made provisien for refund/ adjustment as at March 31, 2021,

Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to cutrent year presentatiosn.

As per owr report of even date attached
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